Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Development Management

Committee

Date: Wednesday, 29th August, 2018
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Brunswick Room - Guildhall, Bath

Agenda

To: All Members of the Development Management Committee

Councillors:- Sally Davis (Chair), Rob Appleyard, Jasper Becker, Paul Crossley,
Matthew Davies, Eleanor Jackson, Les Kew, Bryan Organ, Caroline Roberts and

David Veale

Permanent Substitutes:- Councillors: Patrick Anketell-dJones, Neil Butters, lan Gilchrist,
Liz Hardman, Will Sandry, Liz Richardson, Brian Simmons, Martin Veal and

Karen Warrington

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Marie Todd

Democratic Services

Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG
Telephone: 01225 39 4414

Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk

E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Public Access points:- Reception: Civic
Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies - Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and
Midsomer Norton public libraries.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please
make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera
operator.

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two working days
before the meeting. This means that for Development Management meetings held on
Wednesdays, notice must be received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous
Monday. Further details of the scheme:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/documents/s45420/Development%20Management%20Plann
ing%20public%20speaking%20scheme.pdf

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted.
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings
Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505



https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/documents/s45420/Development%20Management%20Planning%20public%20speaking%20scheme.pdf
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/documents/s45420/Development%20Management%20Planning%20public%20speaking%20scheme.pdf
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

Development Management Committee- Wednesday, 29th August, 2018
at 2.00 pm in the Brunswick Room - Guildhall, Bath

AGENDA

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chairman will ask the Committee Administrator to draw attention to the
emergency evacuation procedure.

ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN (IF DESIRED)
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number and site in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer before the meeting
to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

(1) At the time of publication, no items had been submitted.

(2) To note that, regarding planning applications to be considered, members of the
public who have given the requisite notice to the Committee Administrator will be able
to make a statement to the Committee immediately before their respective applications
are considered. There will be a time limit of 3 minutes for each proposal, ie 3 minutes
for the Parish and Town Councils, 3 minutes for the objectors to the proposal and 3
minutes for the applicant, agent and supporters. This allows a maximum of 9 minutes
per proposal.

ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS

To deal with any petitions or questions from Councillors and where appropriate Co-
opted Members



8. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 38)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 1 August 2018.

9. MAIN PLANS LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR
DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE (Pages 39 - 104)

10. NEW PLANNING APPEALS LODGED, DECISIONS RECEIVED AND DATES OF
FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES (Pages 105 - 110)

The Committee is asked to note the report.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Marie Todd who can be contacted on
01225 394414.

Delegated List Web Link: http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-
control/view-and-comment-planning-applications/delegated-report



http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/view-and-comment-planning-applications/delegated-report
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/view-and-comment-planning-applications/delegated-report

Agenda Item 8
Bath and North East
Somerset Council

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held
Wednesday, 1st August, 2018, 2.00 pm

Councillors: Sally Davis (Chair), Patrick Anketell-Jones (Reserve) (in place of Les Kew),
Jasper Becker, Neil Butters (Reserve) (in place of Rob Appleyard), Paul Crossley,
Matthew Davies, Eleanor Jackson, Bryan Organ, Will Sandry (Reserve) (in place of Caroline
Roberts) and Brian Simmons (Reserve) (in place of David Veale)
22 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer read out the emergency evacuation procedure.
23 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN (IF DESIRED)

A Vice Chairman was not required on this occasion.
24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were received from:

Clir Rob Appleyard — substitute Clir Neil Butters

Clir Les Kew — substitute Clir Patrick Anketell-Jones

Clir Caroline Roberts — substitute Clir Will Sandry

Clir David Veale — substitute Clir Brian Simmons
25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.
26 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN

There was no urgent business.

27 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

The Democratic Services Officer informed the meeting that there were a number of
people wishing to make statements on planning applications and that they would be
able to do so when these items were discussed.

28 ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS

There were no items from Councillors or Co-Opted Members.

Page 5



29

30

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2018 were confirmed and signed as a
correct record subject to the following amendment:

Item No. 1 — Application No. 18/0185/FUL — paragraph 6

Amend the second sentence to read “He stated that although the Parish Council had
voted to oppose the application, fewer than half had so voted”.

SITE VISIT LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR
DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE

The Committee considered:

e Areport by the Group Manager (Development Management) on various
planning applications.

e An update report by the Group Manager (Development Management)
attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes.

e Oral statements by members of the public and representatives. A copy of the
speakers’ list is attached as Appendix 2 to these minutes.

RESOLVED that in accordance with the Committee’s delegated powers, the
applications be determined as set out in the decisions list attached as Appendix 3 to
these minutes.

Item No. 1

Application No. 18/00356/FUL

Site Location: Curbar Edge, 2 Rowlands Close, Bathford, Bath, BA1 7TZ — Roof
change to create habitable space with 4 bedrooms incorporating rear dormer
structure, front single storey extension and landscaping including engineering
works to the rear garden

The Case Officer reported on the application and her recommendation to permit.

A local resident spoke against the application.

The applicant spoke in favour of the application.

Clir Martin Veal, local ward member, spoke against the application. He stated that
all three local ward members opposed the proposal which was not in keeping with
the area. He stated that the design was inappropriate and was overbearing; there
were also concerns about the height of the building and the potential for overlooking
of neighbouring properties. He pointed out that the removal of ponds and trees had
caused ecological harm.

The Case Officer responded to questions as follows:

e The site was not in a Conservation Area.

Page 6



31

e The increase in the height of the roof was 1.5m.
e The existing garage would remain in its current location.

Clir Becker stated that although he could understand the concerns of local residents
he did not feel that there were sufficient planning grounds to refuse the application.
He moved the officer recommendation to permit. This was seconded by Clir
Crossley.

The motion was then put to the vote and it was RESOLVED by 7 votes in favour and
3 abstentions to PERMIT the application subject to the conditions set out in the
report.

MAIN PLANS LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR
DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE

The Committee considered:

e A report by the Group Manager (Development Management) on various
planning applications.

e An update report by the Group Manager (Development Management) on
items 1, 3, 4 and 5 attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes.

e Oral statements by members of the public and representatives. A copy of the
speakers’ list is attached as Appendix 2 to these minutes.

RESOLVED that in accordance with the delegated powers, the applications be
determined as set out in the decisions list attached as Appendix 4 to these minutes.

Item No. 1

Application No: 18/00058/EREG03

Site Location: Bath Quays North Development Site, Avon Street, Bath — Outline
planning application for comprehensive mixed use redevelopment, comprising
B1, C1, C3, A1, A3, A4, A5, D1 and D2 uses, with total combined floorspace of
up to 38,000sgm (GIA, above ground), infrastructure (including basement car
park) and associated development, including demolition of existing multi
storey car park and amenity building. Access, landscaping, layout and scale
for approval (to extent described in separate Development Specification), all
other matters reserved

The Case Officer reported on the application and his recommendation for approval.
He informed members that there had been no objection from Natural England
subject to certain conditions being required. The existing number of parking spaces
on the site was 639 not 693 as stated in the report. The application had been
amended to omit any A5 (hot food takeaway) floorspace. There were also some
minor amendments to the conditions and the recommendation was to delegate to
permit the application.

A representative from South West Transport Network spoke against the application.

The applicant spoke in favour of the application.

Page 7



The Case Officer then responded to questions from members as follows:

e Coach parking would be provided at the Odd Down park and ride site and this
would be in place prior to the closure of the Avon Street coach park. Drop off
facilities would still be available in the town centre.

e The land valuation was based on the capitalised income stream. The 20%
premium was considered to be appropriate to act as an incentive to
developers and was in line with government guidance.

e The cost of the car parking spaces included provision for subterranean
structures which had increased the cost per space. There was a requirement
to provide car parking within the development and ground level parking would
increase building heights.

e The applicant had submitted a financial appraisal to substantiate their
assertion that, based on the costs and values of the development, the
scheme was not viable and would be unable to support any affordable homes.
Affordable housing could still be delivered via a grant process but this was not
a material consideration. Whilst the lack of affordable housing within the
scheme was regrettable the Council’s key aim was to provide office and
employment space in the city centre.

e CIL (Community Infrastructure Levy) would apply to some parts of the
development, although office space was not subject to a CIL contribution. The
total amount of CIL provided would depend on the final mix in the scheme.

e The existing public toilets in Avon Street would be demolished but there may
be new facilities within the redevelopment.

e The Environment Agency had raised no objections to the application subject
to conditions being in place to include a flood evacuation plan. The plinth
would also be raised up to avoid the flood zone.

e There would be up to 270 dwellings within the development and even if the
maximum were provided the site would still not be viable. Full details of the
residential part of the development would come forward as part of the
reserved matters application. This was likely to comprise a range of building
heights in line with the parameter plans and design codes.

e The development has the potential to create a significant number of full time
equivalent job opportunities within the South West economy and the B&NES
area. Full details were set out in the report.

Clir Crossley moved that consideration of the application be deferred pending a site
visit and workshop session with officers. He stated that this was a very important
application and many questions remained unanswered. It would be helpful to view
the various different areas of the site and visualise how the development might look.
He also believed that further discussion was required around the viability
assessment due to the non-provision of affordable housing.

Clir Jackson seconded the motion. She was concerned at the number of concerns
put forward by officers that the application was not acceptable in its current form, as
set out on pages 50 and 51 of the report. She also stated that the design should be
more dynamic and was concerned at the lack of social housing.

The Group Manager, Development Management, stated that he did not feel a site
visit was necessary as members were familiar with the site and specific questions

Page 8



were being, and could be answered, at the meeting. He confirmed that the viability
appraisal had been scrutinised by independent experts and officers were satisfied
with this review. The application was in line with design codes and the Placemaking
Plan.

Clir Matthew Davies felt that a site visit was unnecessary and pointed out that the
application was only at the outline stage and that a more detailed application would
come forward for consideration by the Committee in due course.

Clir Becker stated that he could not support the proposal for a site visit. If the
Council wanted to attract jobs to Bath then the right type of office space was
required in the right location. It was necessary to cross subsidise the provision of
office space by residential development and more high value jobs were required in
the area. He felt that deferral would not shed any more light on the application and
that the Committee should seize the opportunity to provide this much needed
development.

Clir Sandry supported the proposal for a site visit as it would help members to view
the site in the context of the plans submitted. There were considerations such as the
view from the surrounding area and the impact on adjacent Georgian buildings. It
was important to pause and reflect on this type of application, particularly in light of
the lack of affordable housing provision.

Clir Anketell-Jones felt that the site would never be viable unless the height of the
buildings was significantly increased. He felt that the officer report provided
sufficient information on which to make an informed decision.

CliIr Butters supported the provision of more office accommodation in Bath but
shared the concerns regarding the number of senior officers who had put forward
concerns about the application such as the Urban Design and Landscape Officers.

The motion was put to the vote and there were 4 votes in favour and 6 votes against.
The motion was therefore LOST.

Clir Becker then moved that the Committee delegate to permit the application with
amendments. He noted that there was flexibility in the proposals but that the general
principle regarding the unviability of the site remained. It was important for the local
economy to move away from its dependence on retail, food and tourism. The
current site needed regeneration. The roof heights were acceptable. He understood
the concerns regarding the lack of affordable housing but felt that this could be dealt
with in an alternative way. However, he had concerns regarding the design codes
and guidance and felt that more control should be taken in this area. He proposed
that the Committee agree that the design principles should follow those in the
Placemaking Plan and should recognise the homogeneity of the heritage of
Georgian Bath.

The Group Manger, Development Management, explained that the Placemaking
Plan required the scheme to respond positively to adjacent buildings and the wider
context of Bath. The design code dealt with design principles but not architectural
style. Design detail would be difficult to pin down at this stage and would be
addressed through the reserved matters submissions. He advised that the existing
level of control over the design was sufficient.

Page 9



The Case Officer explained that the design codes had been prepared with the
Georgian city in mind although they did not specify exactly what the development
should look like. An informative requiring the developer to have regard to the
Placemaking Plan allocation and the homogeneity of Georgian Bath could be added.
Clir Becker agreed to this suggestion.

Clir Matthew Davies seconded the motion. He noted that if the development were to
become viable in the future then affordable housing could still be provided.

Clir Crossley spoke against the motion. He was supportive of new development but
felt that more work was required on this proposal. There were wide parameters for
the development and he was concerned at the lack of affordable housing on a
Council owned site. He also had concerns regarding the viability assessment and
felt that the provision of up to 270 dwellings with no affordable housing was
unacceptable. Overall he felt that the scheme was premature and would not be
advantageous for the long term future of Bath.

Cllr Sandry stated that the office space within the proposal could end up being
squeezed out by the provision of luxury apartments. The location was perfect for
office accommodation being so close to the bus and train stations.

Clir Anketell-Jones noted that the site could become a vibrant business quarter for
Bath providing high value jobs. It was important not to dilute the vision for the site.
Office space in Bath had been lost in the past and this would also offer the
opportunity for people to live sustainably in the city centre. City centres were
changing due to developments in digital technology leading to less retail and more
housing developments. This proposal provided the right mix of vision and flexibility.

The motion was then put to the vote and it was RESOLVED by 6 votes in favour and
4 against to DELEGATE TO PERMIT the application subject to conditions, a
planning obligation to secure future viability reviews to secure affordable housing
where possible, and the inclusion of an informative requiring the detailed design to
respect and complement the architectural character of Georgian Bath and its
surroundings.

Item No. 2

Application No. 17/05597/FUL

Site Location: Ryman Engineering Services, Frome Road, Radstock, BA3 3PY
— Demolition of existing building and redevelopment of the site for residential
purposes involving the erection of 10 units and associated infrastructure
including parking and private gardens

The Case Officer reported on the application and his recommendation for refusal.
He gave the following updates:

¢ An email of support had been received from the Norton Radstock
Regeneration Company.

e The revised NPPF had been published on 24 July 2018. References in the
Committee report to the NPPF should be amended as follows — page 90
reference to “Paragraph 135” should now read “Paragraph 197”. Page 94
reference to “Paragraphs 186 and 187” should now read “Paragraph 38”.

Page 10



The revised NPPF states that if the highways impact is unacceptable an
application should be refused (previously this stated that an application
should be refused if the highways impact was severe).

A member of Radstock Town Council spoke in favour of the application.

The applicant and agent spoke in favour of the application.

A statement was read out on behalf of Clir Chris Dando, local ward member, in
support of the application. He pointed out that the Ryman’s Engineering Works was
now located in an increasingly residential setting and was out of place. The current
premises were no longer fit for purpose. The proposed scheme would provide
affordable housing in the town and would be more in keeping with the location and
Conservation Area. Concerns raised could be addressed through conditions.

The Case Officer then responded to questions as follows:

The Coal Authority had provided some comments regarding one of the mine
shafts which were read out at the meeting. Members were advised that the
shaft had been filled in 1974 with pit muck and capped by British Coal to an
unknown specification. An additional cap had since been added but this was
also to an unknown specification. In 1999 the shaft was inspected and this
showed that the fill had slumped by 60-70m; the private owners were
responsible for its filling. There were no further records held by the Coal
Authority in respect of further treatment. There were no records regarding the
other mine shaft.

The Case Officer advised that intrusive investigation of the two mine shafts
was required in advance of the application being determined. It was advised
that resolution of this matter could not be dealt with by condition as the
findings of the investigation could have fundamental implications for the
scheme — such as a change in layout or reduction in the number of units for
example. It was unclear at this stage what mitigation may be necessary (if

any).

Similarly it was advised by the Case Officer that conditions could not
effectively be used to resolve the light spill/ecological issue because it may be
that a revised layout and/or orientation of the building(s) was necessary to
reduce light spill to an acceptable level. He also advised that a resolution of
this issue during the course of the application may well have been reached
had there not been fundamental highway and ecological concerns.

The Group Manager, Development Management, made the following comments:

The underground conditions of the site were a material consideration. The
applicant should be requested to come back when the appropriate
assessments have taken place.

The ecology concerns were around the presence of both Lesser and Greater

Horseshoe bats which were a protected species under European law. There
could be a solution but without a survey this was unclear.

Page 11



The Highways Officer explained that the original highways consultant had felt that
action could be taken to make the application acceptable. However, this would
involve having to advertise to change the speed limit. The point of access was
currently unclear as it differed from plan to plan. There could be a solution to the
highways concerns but no further plans to address these issues had been submitted.
As the application stands there were safety concerns.

Clir Jackson stated that the site was a strategic site in Radstock which was crying
out for development. It was a brownfield site which should be prioritised despite its
interesting ecology. The proposal would conserve and enhance the area and
affordable housing was also desperately needed. The entrance to the site was
substandard and there was no need for more offices and shops in the town centre at
present. The location was sustainable being close to bus stops and shops. The
Chair of Norton Radstock Regeneration Company, the Radstock Action Group and
Radstock Town Council all supported this application. Many of the developments in
Radstock were situated on top of mines or near mine shafts and this would be no
different.

Clir Jackson then moved that the Committee delegate to permit the application with
strong conditions including:

e A satisfactory plan for re-engineering of the road access and perhaps a
warning sign “concealed access”.

e Ecological mitigation (dealing with light spill issues)

¢ A thorough satisfactory “intrusive” mining report with mitigation measures/way
forward to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

Cllr Sandry seconded the motion as he did not feel that the Coal Authority response
warranted concern, he considered the slumping of the fill to be beneficial in terms of
the stability of the shaft, although an intrusive survey would be helpful. Despite
some concerns regarding transport and access this was already a site access.

Clir Becker supported the building of houses on the site but felt that the current
application should be rejected until the applicant has addressed the issues raised
relating to the mines, bats and access.

Clir Anketell-Jones asked whether the Council would be legally liable if there were to
be a shaft collapse/future ground instability. He was advised by the Group Manager,
Development Management, that the Council would not be liable and that any future
subsidence or other issues relating to the mines would be the responsibility of the
landowner but that it was correct for members to consider whether they were
satisfied that the risk of development had been properly considered.

The Group Manager, Development Management, pointed out that full details were
not yet known regarding the ecology and mining concerns. More work should be
carried out to ascertain the best way to safeguard the rare bats in this area.

Following further advice from the Case Officer, the Highways Officer and Group

Manager, Development Management, Clir Jackson accepted and Clir Sandry
seconded that it be moved that the Committee delegate to permit the application with

Page 12



strong conditions including:

e Securing the access as shown on the current plans

e Securing the delivery of any necessary ecological surveys and
appropriate/necessary mitigation prior to any development taking place

e Securing intrusive ground investigations at the site prior to any development
taking place together with any necessary mitigation identified.

The motion was put to the vote and it was RESOLVED by 6 votes in favour and 4
votes against to DELEGATE TO PERMIT the application subject to conditions.

Item No. 3

Application No. 18/00179/FUL

Site Location: The Copse, Bannerdown Road, Batheaston, Bath — Erection of 5
dwellings with access and associated works following demolition of existing
dwelling

The Case Officer reported on the application and his recommendation to permit. He
informed the Committee that he had received one further objection from a local
resident regarding overlooking and the effectiveness of the proposed management
company.

A representative from the local Residents’ Group spoke against the application.
The agent spoke in favour of the application.

Cllr Martin Veal, local ward member, spoke against the application. He
congratulated the architect and agent for the way in which they had engaged with
local residents. However, he expressed concern regarding the overlooking of
properties in West View Road and the subsequent invasion of privacy. He also
raised issues relating to the slope of the land on the site, non compliance with the
NPPF, tree maintenance, the Management Company and insufficient car parking
spaces.

The Case Officer responded to queries as follows:

e There was surface water drainage on the site.

e Condition 9 required that no occupation of the development site shall
commence until details of a management company were submitted.

e The concerns re overlooking had been considered and the distances between
the majority of the properties were over 21m. There was also a laurel hedge
along the site boundary.

e The development comprised a mix of flat and pitched roofs.

Clir Becker moved the officer recommendation to permit. He felt that this was a
good scheme and that the conditions proposed would deal with the concerns raised
by the objectors.

CliIr Crossley seconded the motion and stated that, on balance, he felt that the
issues relating to overlooking and water flows had been addressed.

Page 13



Clir Jackson expressed concerns regarding environmental issues on the site
including the maintenance of the trees.

The motion was put to the vote and it was RESOLVED by 9 votes in favour and 1
against to PERMIT the application subject to the conditions set out in the report.

Item No. 4

Application No. 18/01510/LBA

Site Location: 31 Sion Hill, Lansdown, Bath, BA1 2UW - Internal and external
alterations to insert pair of new windows to ground floor of rear elevation and
new joinery details to existing rear doors

The Case Officer reported on the application and her recommendation for refusal.
The applicant spoke in favour of the application.

Clir Anthony Clarke, local ward member, spoke in favour of the application. Whilst
he agreed with protecting heritage buildings he felt that it was important for houses
to adapt, provided this was not detrimental to the building. He did not feel that this
application would be harmful and noted the applicants’ wish to gain more light in
their main living area.

(Note: At this point Cllr Organ left the meeting)
The Case Officer responded to questions as follows:

e There were a large variety of designs in this area but none exactly like the
proposal as far as she was aware.

e Changes to a listed building can still be considered harmful even if people
were unable to see them.

ClIr Anketell-Jones, local ward member, stated that he supported the comments
made by ClIr Clarke. He noted that the additional windows were required for
practical purposes to illuminate the interior of the property.

(Note: At this point Cllr Organ returned to the meeting. He was unable to vote on
this application as he had not been present for the whole of the discussion on this
item).

Clir Crossley stressed the need for period properties to meet the needs of the
residents who currently live in them. A window had already been added to the rear
facade and he did not feel that the proposal would damage the building. It reflected
the changing requirements for modern living and would ultimately protect the
building and its long term maintenance which amounted to a public benefit. He
moved that the Committee delegate to permit the application. This was seconded by
Clir Matthew Davies.

Clir Becker supported the motion stating that the new windows would not be visible
from the street as they were at the rear of the property.

The motion was put to the vote and it was RESOLVED unanimously to DELEGATE
TO PERMIT the application subject to conditions.

10
Page 14



32

Item No. 5

Application No. 18/02224/FUL

Site Location: 146 Wellsway, Bath, BA2 4SE - Provision of rear parking area
for 1 vehicle

The Case Officer reported on the application and the recommendation for refusal.

ClIr Michael Norton, local ward member, spoke in favour of the application. He
stated that the benéefit of this application to the resident outweighed any negative
impact. The wall was already breached in some parts and removing a car from the
public highway was of benefit to the area. There was no objection from local
residents. The wall was a retaining structure rather than a historical feature.

The Case Officer responded to questions as follows:

e The proposed parking space would comprise a hardstanding area with a
retaining wall to the rear. No gates were shown on the plans.

e A similar application had been refused in April 2013.

e The public parking layby area would be reduced in length if the application
were approved. One smaller parking space would still be available.

¢ No concerns had been raised regarding the loss of trees or hedgerows.

e There would be harm to the Conservation Area.

e The stonework could be reused where possible but this would require
negotiation with the applicant.

The Group Manager, Development Management, pointed out that the existing
breaches in the wall were predominantly for garages and that part of the wall had
been retained. This application would breach the full height of the wall which more
typically took place only in small pedestrian accesses.

Clir Jackson stated that the application was contrary to policy and would not
preserve or enhance the Conservation Area. The wall was retaining and historic and
should be preserved. The application would also result in the loss of a public
parking space. She moved the officer recommendation for refusal.

Clir Crossley seconded the motion noting that this was a long wall with a substantial
visual presence which was a feature in this location.

Clir Anketell-Jones felt that the wall was characteristic of the area and that the open
space which would be created would result in a brutal appearance.

The motion was put to the vote and it was RESOLVED by 9 votes in favour and 1
abstention to REFUSE the application for the reasons set out in the report.
QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT - APRIL TO JUNE 2018

The Committee considered the quarterly performance report for the period April to

June 2018. ClIr Crossley congratulated the Committee on its excellent service to the
public and consistently high standards. He also praised the Chair for the excellent

11
Page 15



way she dealt with the Committee and the fairness she showed to all members.
The Group Manager, Development Management, responded to questions as follows:

e There was no clear reason why B&NES had a 2% rise in planning application
numbers when the national trend was for a 3% decrease.

e Future reports would show the costs awarded to the Council as well as those
awarded against.

o Workloads for planning officers were relatively high and there were currently 2
vacancies within the team.

e He agreed that ward councillors should be informed of any judicial reviews of
planning applications within their area.

RESOLVED to note the quarterly performance report.

33 NEW PLANNING APPEALS LODGED, DECISIONS RECEIVED AND DATES OF
FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES

The Committee considered the appeals report.

RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting ended at 6.15 pm

Chair

Prepared by Democratic Services

12
Page 16



BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

Development Management Committee

Date1st August 2018
OBSERVATIONS RECEIVED SINCE THE PREPARATION OF THE MAIN
AGENDA

Item No.001 Application No. 18/00356/FUL
Address: Curbar Edge , 2 Rowlands Close, Bathford, Bath, BA1 7TZ

In light of the revised National Planning Policy Framework published on the
24th July the decision taking statement is revised to state;

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has
complied with the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Condition 5 is revised to state;
{\b Wildlife Protection and Enhancement (Pre-commencement)}

Within six weeks of the granting of permission full details of a Wildlife
Protection and Enhancement Scheme produced by a suitably experienced
ecologist shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. These details shall include:

(i) Method statement for pre-construction and construction phases to provide
full details of all necessary protection and mitigation measures, including,
where applicable, proposed precommencement checks and surveys, for the
avoidance of harm to bats, reptiles, nesting birds and other wildlife, and
proposed reporting of findings to the LPA prior to commencement of works;

(i) Detailed proposals for implementation of wildlife mitigation and
enhancement measures, including wildlife-friendly planting and landscape
details; provision of bat and bird boxes; provision of replacement habitats;
provision for enabling movement of wildlife including hedgehogs on and off
site; sensitive lighting design; with proposed specifications, models, species,
materials as applicable, and proposed numbers and positions of species and
features to be shown on plans as applicable;

All works within the scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details and completed in accordance with specified timescales and
prior to the occupation of the development and retained within the
development thereafter in accordance with approved details.

Page 17



Reason: To prevent ecological harm and to provide biodiversity gain in
accordance with policies NE3 of the Bath and North East Somerset Local
Plan.

ITEM

ITEMS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Item No.1 Application No. 18/00058/EREG03
Address: Bath Quays North, Avon Street, Bath

Correction
The existing number of parking spaces on the site is 639 (not 693 as stated in
the report).

The Application has been amended to omit any A5 (Hot food takeaway)
floorspace.

Further Amendments

Following completion of the Committee report minor amendments are
proposed to the wording of Conditions 1, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 19, 22, 26, 31,
34, 35. These changes are to provide further clarity and to reflect the phased
nature of the proposed development.

If Members are minded to approve the application it is proposed that the
Director - Development, Planning and Transport Development be authorised
to make these amendments prior to issuing the Decision Notice.

Revised NPPF

The Revised NPPF was published on 24t July 2018. References in the
Committee report to the NPPF should be to the Revised NPPF (2018).
Reference to para. 134 of the NPPF (2012) should be to para. 196 of the
NPPF (2018). There are no material changes to the advice in respect of the
considerations to be taken into account when determining the current
application.

The NPPF (2018) Section 11: Making Effective Use of Land, further
emphasises the contribution that brownfield sites and under-utilised land can
make to delivering homes and other identified needs.

Item No.3 Application No. 18/00179/FUL
Address: The Copse, Bannerdown Road, Batheaston

Revised NPPF

The Revised NPPF was published on 24t July 2018. References in the
Committee report to the NPPF should be to the Revised NPPF (2018).
Reference to paragraph 120 of the NPPF (2012) should be to paragraph 179
of the NPPF (2018). There are no material changes to the advice in respect

Page 18



of the considerations to be taken into account when determining the current
application.

Item No.4 Application No. 18/01510/LBA
Address: 31 Sion Hill Bath

The Revised NPPF was published on 24t July 2018. References in the main
body of the Committee report to the NPPF should be to the Revised NPPF
(2018). References to paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF (2012) in the
decision taking statement should be to paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2018).
There are no material changes to the advice in respect of the considerations
to be taken into account when determining the current application.

Under Other representations should read;
Two representations have been submitted in support which comment that ....

Item No.5 Application No. 18/02224/FUL
Address: 146 Wellsway, Bath

The Revised NPPF was published on 24t July 2018. References in the
Committee report to the NPPF should be to the Revised NPPF (2018).
Reference to paragraph 134 of the NPPF (2012) should be to paragraph 196
of the NPPF (2018). There are no material changes to the advice in respect
of the considerations to be taken into account when determining the current
application.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND REPRESENTATIVES WISHING TO MAKE A
STATEMENT AT THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE ON WEDNESDAY 1 AUGUST 2018

SITE VISIT LIST

ITEM
NO.

SITE NAME

SPEAKER

FOR/AGAINST

1. Bath Quays North

Street, Bath

2. Ryman Engineering

Radstock, BA3 3PY

3. The Copse,
Bannerdown Road,
Batheaston, Bath

Development Site, Avon

David Redgewell

1 Curbar Edge, 2 Martin Gurney Against
Rowlands Close,
Bathford, Bath, BA1 Nikki McCarthy (Applicant) For
7TZ
ClIr Martin Veal (Local Ward Against
Member)
MAIN PLANS LIST
ITEM SITE NAME SPEAKER FOR/AGAINST
NO.

Against

Services, Frome Road,

Simon Martin (Applicant)

CliIr Colin Currie (Radstock
Town Council)

For

For

Steve Ryman (Applicant)

James Dean (Agent)

For (To share 3
minutes)

Penny Gill (Residents’ Group) | Against
Chris Beaver (Agent) For
Clir Martin Veal (Local Ward Against

Member)

Page 21




31 Sion Hill, Lansdown,
Bath, BA1 2UW

146 Wellsway, Bath,
BA2 4SE

Anthony Russ (Applicant) For
Clir Anthony Clarke (Local For
Ward Member)

Clir Michael Norton (Local For

Ward Member)

Page 22




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
1st August 2018

DECISIONS
Item No: 001
Application No:  18/00356/FUL
Site Location: Curbar Edge , 2 Rowlands Close, Bathford, Bath
Ward: Bathavon North Parish: Bathford LB Grade: N/A
Application Type: Full Application
Proposal: Roof change to create habitable space with 4 bedrooms incorporating

rear dormer structure, front single storey extension and landscaping
including engineering works to the rear garden.

Constraints: Agric Land Class 1,2,3a, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent, Policy
CP9 Affordable Housing Zones, Housing Development Boundary,
MOD Safeguarded Areas, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones, Policy ST8
Safeguarded Airport & Aerodro,

Applicant: Mrs Nikki McCarthy
Expiry Date: 3rd August 2018
Case Officer: Alice Barnes

DECISION PERMIT

1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission

2 Materials - Submission of Schedule and Samples (Bespoke Trigger)

No construction of the external walls of the development shall commence until a schedule
of materials and finishes, and samples of the materials to be used in the construction of
the external surfaces, including roofs, have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out only in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the development and the surrounding area
in accordance with Policies D1, D2, D3 and D5 of the Bath and North East Somerset
Placemaking Plan and Policy CP6 of the Bath and North East Somerset Core Strategy.

3 Parking (Compliance)

The areas allocated for parking on the submitted plan shall be kept clear of obstruction
and shall not be used other than for the parking of vehicles in

Page 23



connection with the development hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure sufficient parking is retained at all times in the interests of amenity and
highways safety in accordance with Policy ST7 of the Bath and
North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

4 Obscure Glazing and Non-opening Window(s) (Compliance)

The proposed bathroom window shown on the garage side elevation shall be obscurely
glazed and non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more
than 1.7m above the floor of the room in which the window is installed. Thereafter the
window shall be permanently retained as such.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining occupiers from overlooking and loss of
privacy in accordance with Policy D6 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking
Plan.

5 Wildlife Protection and Enhancement (Pre-commencement)

Within six weeks of the granting of permission full details of a Wildlife Protection and
Enhancement Scheme produced by a suitably experienced ecologist shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. These details shall include:

(i) Method statement for pre-construction and construction phases to provide full details of
all necessary protection and mitigation measures, including, where applicable, proposed
precommencement checks and surveys, for the avoidance of harm to bats, reptiles,
nesting birds and other wildlife, and proposed reporting of findings to the LPA prior to
commencement of works;

(i) Detailed proposals for implementation of wildlife mitigation and enhancement
measures, including wildlife-friendly planting and landscape details; provision of bat and
bird boxes; provision of replacement habitats; provision for enabling movement of wildlife
including hedgehogs on and off site; sensitive lighting design; with proposed
specifications, models, species, materials as applicable, and proposed numbers and
positions of species and features to be shown on plans as applicable;

All works within the scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
and completed in accordance with specified timescales and prior to the occupation of the
development and retained within the development thereafter in accordance with approved
details.

Reason: To prevent ecological harm and to provide biodiversity gain in accordance with
policies NE3 of the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan.

6 Protection and Enhancement (Pre-occupation):
No occupation of the development hereby approved shall commence until:
(@) measures to provide additional features to benefit wildlife, to include, for example,

nesting opportunities for birds; bat boxes; hedgehog home; hedgehog access points within
fencing; and wildlife- and bee-friendly planting; have been installed on site

Page 24



(b) a brief report confirming and demonstrating, using photographs where appropriate,
completion of the measures in part (a) of this condition, has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

All such measures and features shall be retained and maintained thereafter for the
purposes of providing wildlife habitat

Reason: To minimise loss of nesting and bat roosting habitats and a net loss to
biodiversity, and to provide biodiversity gain in accordance with NPPF

7 Plans List (Compliance)
The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.
PLANS LIST:

Site location plan

Block plan

Existing plans and elevations 101
Proposed elevations 201 revised
Roof plan and view 202 revised
Proposed section 203

Proposed section 204

Condition Categories
The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is
required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.g.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Page 25



Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens
after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

Community Infrastructure Levy

You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. Before commencing any
development on site you should ensure you are familiar with the CIL process. If the
development approved by this permission is CIL liable there are requirements to assume
liability and notify the Council before development commences, failure to comply with the
regulations can result in surcharges and additional payments. Full details about the CIL
Charge including, amount and process for payment will be sent out in a CIL Liability
Notice which you will receive shortly. Further details are available here:
www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 26



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
1st August 2018

Application Type:
Proposal:

Constraints:

Applicant:
Expiry Date:
Case Officer:

DECISIONS
ltem No: 01
Application No:  18/00058/EREGO03
Site Location: Bath Quays North Development Site, Avon Street, City Centre, Bath
Ward: Kingsmead Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A

Reg03 app with EIA attached

Outline planning application for comprehensive mixed use
redevelopment, comprising B1, C1, C3, Al, A3, A4, D1 and D2 uses,
with total combined floorspace of up to 38,000sgm (GIA,above
ground), infrastructure (including basement car park) and associated
development, including demolition of existing multi storey car park
and amenity building. Access, landscaping, layout and scale for
approval (to extent described in separate Development Specification),
all other matters reserved.

Article 4 Bath Demolition Wall, Article 4 Reg 7: Estate Agent, Article 4
HMO, Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Air Quality Management Area, Policy
B1 Bath Enterprise Zone, Policy B2 Central Area Strategic Policy,
Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent, Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, British
Waterways Major and EIA, British Waterways Minor and
Householders, Conservation Area, Contaminated Land, Policy CP12
Centres and Retailing, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing Zones, Policy
CR3 Primary Shopping Areas, Flood Zone 2, Flood Zone 3, HMO
Stage 1 Test Area (Stage 2 Test Req), LLFA - Flood Risk
Management, MOD Safeguarded Areas, Policy NE1 Green
Infrastructure Network, Policy NE2A Landscapes and the green set,
Policy NE5 Ecological Networks, Placemaking Plan Allocated Sites,
Public Right of Way, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Bath & North East Somerset Council
30th April 2018
Gwilym Jones

DECISION Delegated to permit subject to applicant entering into S106 agreement and

relevant conditions.

[tem No:
Application No:
Site Location:

02
17/05597/FUL
Ryman Engineering Services, Frome Road, Radstock, Bath And

North East Somerset

Page 27




Ward: Radstock
Application Type:
Proposal:

Constraints:

Applicant:
Expiry Date:
Case Officer:

Parish: Radstock LB Grade: N/A
Full Application

Demolition of existing building and redevelopment of the site for
residential purposes involving the erection of 10 units and associated
infrastructure, including parking and private gardens

Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Coal - Standing Advice Area, Conservation
Area, Contaminated Land, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing Zones,
Flood Zone 2, Flood Zone 3, Policy GDS1 Site Allocations, Housing
Development Boundary, LLFA - Flood Risk Management, Policy NE1
Green Infrastructure Network, Policy NE2A Landscapes and the
green set, Policy NE5 Ecological Networks, Policy PCS6 Unstable
Land-Coal Mining Le, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Ryman Engineering Services
20th June 2018
Chris Gomm

DECISION Delegate to Permit subject to conditions

Item No:
Application No:
Site Location:

03
18/00179/FUL
The Copse, Bannerdown Road, Batheaston, Bath

Ward: Bathavon North Parish: Batheaston LB Grade: N/A

Application Type:
Proposal:

Constraints:

Applicant:
Expiry Date:
Case Officer:

Full Application

Erection of 5no dwellings with access and associated works following
demolition of existing dwelling

Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent, Policy
CP9 Affordable Housing Zones, Housing Development Boundary,
MOD Safeguarded Areas, Policy NE1 Green Infrastructure Network,
SSSI - Impact Risk Zones, Policy ST8 Safeguarded Airport &
Aerodro, Tree Preservation Order,

Complete Build Solutions Ltd
2nd August 2018
Chris Griggs-Trevarthen

DECISION PERMIT

1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Page 28




Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission

2 Construction Management Plan (Pre-commencement)

No development shall commence until a Construction Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall include
details of deliveries (including storage arrangements and timings), contractor parking,
traffic management, working hours, site opening times, wheel wash facilities and site
compound arrangements. It shall also include details of how ground stability will be
maintained during the construction process. The development shall thereafter be
undertaken in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that safe operation of the highway, the protection of residential
amenity and land stability in accordance with policies PCS6 and ST7 of the Bath and
North East Somerset Placemaking Plan. This is a condition precedent because any initial
construction or demolition works could have a detrimental impact upon highways safety
and/or residential amenity.

3 Land Stability Assessment and Mitigation (Pre-commencement)

No development shall commence, except for demolition or investigation works, until a
detailed land stability report and mitigation method statement have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include a detailed
assessment of the potential impacts of the proposed development on the land stability of
the site and surrounding slopes and detailed mitigation measures to be employed to
address any significant risk identified. The development shall thereafter be undertaken in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that there is a detailed assessment of land stability undertaken at the
detailed design stage and to gain an understanding of the impacts of the proposed
development and the most appropriate mitigation methods in accordance with policy
PCS6 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan. This is a condition
precedent because the condition of the land and the appropriate mitigation and
construction methods need to be understood before any works commence.

4 Drainage Details (Pre-commencement)

No development shall commence until full details of a surface water drainage system with
supporting calculations have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. These must demonstrate that the drainage system can store surface
water for up to the critical 1:100+ climate change rainfall event without flooding occurring
on the site. The development shall thereafter be undertaken in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the development and neighbouring properties are not subject to
unacceptable flood risk in accordance with policy CP5 of the Bath and North East
Somerset Core Strategy and policy SU1 of the Bath and North East Somerset
Placemaking Plan. This is a condition precedent because the size of the attenuation tank
will directly affect the initial groundworks and therefore need to be understood before
development commences.

5 Arboricultural Method Statement (Pre-commencement)

Page 29



No demolition or development shall take place until a Detailed Arboricultural Method
Statement with Tree Protection Plan following the recommendations contained within BS
5837:2012 has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and details within the approved document implemented as appropriate. The final method
statement shall incorporate a provisional programme of works; pre-commencement site
meeting with the appointed Arboriculturalist and Local Planning Authority Arboricultural
Officer; supervision and monitoring details by an Arboricultural Consultant and provision of
site visit records and certificates of completion to the local planning authority. The
statement should also include the control of potentially harmful operations such as the
storage, handling and mixing of materials on site, burning, service run locations including
soakaway locations and movement of people and machinery.

Reason: To ensure that trees to be retained are not adversely affected by the
development proposals in accordance with policy NE6 of the Bath and North East
Somerset Placemaking Plan. This is a condition precedent because the works comprising
the development have the potential to harm retained trees. Therefore these details need
to be agreed before work commences.

6 Wildlife Protection Measures (Pre-commencement)

No development shall take place until full details of a Wildlife Protection Measures have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details
shall include:

(a) proposed notification of findings of all necessary pre-commencement survey/
monitoring for badger activity and (if applicable) nesting birds;

(b) plan showing fenced exclusion zone/s and details of method statements as required
for avoidance of harm to wildlife (including badger if applicable) and retained vegetation
and habitats;

(c) proposals for any additional ecological mitigation requirements arising.

The development shall thereafter be carried out only in accordance with the approved
details and with all other ecological mitigation requirements as detailed in the approved
Extended Phase | Ecological Survey dated May 2018 (Stark Ecology).

Reason: To prevent ecological harm and to provide biodiversity gain in accordance with
policies NE3 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

7 Sample Panel - Materials (Bespoke Trigger)

No construction of the external materials of the development shall commence until a
sample panel of all external walling materials to be used has been erected on site,
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and kept on site for reference until the
development is completed. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the development and the surrounding area
in accordance with Policies D1, D2, D3 and D5 of the Bath and North East Somerset
Placemaking Plan and Policy CP6 of the Bath and North East Somerset Core Strategy.

8 External Lighting (Bespoke Trigger)

No new external lighting shall be installed without full details of proposed lighting design
being first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; details to

Page 30



include proposed lamp models and manufacturer's specifications, positions, numbers and
heights; and details of all necessary measures to limit use of lights when not required and
to prevent upward light spill and light spill onto trees and boundary vegetation and
adjacent land; and to avoid harm to bat activity and other wildlife. The lighting shall be
installed maintained and operated thereafter in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To avoid harm to bats and wildlife in accordance with policies NE3 and D8 of the
Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

9 Management Company (Pre-occupation)

No occupation of the development shall commence until details of a management
company which will maintain the communal areas of the site have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include details of the
following:

1. How the management company will be organised and funded in perpetuity;

2. An inspection and maintenance regime for the retained and proposed trees, with
particular attention given to the 7no. TPO London Plane Trees along the southern
boundary of the site;

3. An agreed height for the Laurel hedge along the southern boundary of the site and
details of how this will be maintained;

4. How the wildlife corridor and all approved ecological features and planting will be
maintained; and,

5. A site management plan identifying the areas to which the above matters relate.

The communal areas of the site shall thereafter be maintained by the approved
management company in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the adequate maintenance of the communal areas in the interests of
the longevity and health of the retained trees, the privacy of adjoining neighbours and
biodiversity in accordance with policies NE6, D6 and NE3 of the Bath and North East
Somerset Placemaking Plan.

10 Hard and Soft Landscaping Details (Pre-occupation)

No occupation shall commence until a hard and soft landscape scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority showing details of all
trees, hedgerows and other planting to be retained; finished ground levels; a planting
specification to include numbers, density, size, species and positions of all new trees and
shrubs, details of existing and proposed walls, fences, other boundary treatment and
surface treatment of the open parts of the site, and a programme of implementation.

Reason: To ensure the provision of an appropriate landscape setting to the development
in accordance with Policies D.2 and D.4 of the Bath and North East Somerset
Placemaking Plan.

11 Water Efficiency - Rainwater Harvesting (Pre-occupation)

No occupation of the approved dwellings shall commence until a scheme for rainwater
harvesting or other methods of capturing rainwater for use by residents (e.g. Water butts)
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall thereafter be constructed in accordance with the approved details.

Page 31



Reason: In the interests of water efficiency in accordance with Policy SCR5 of the Bath
and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

12 Arboricultural Certificate of Compliance (Pre-occupation)

No development or other operations shall take place except in complete accordance with
the approved Arboricultural Method Statement. A certificate of compliance signed by the
appointed Arboriculturalist shall be provided to the local planning authority on completion
and prior to first occupancy.

Reason: To ensure that the approved arboricultural method statement is complied with for
the duration of the development in accordance with policy NE5 of the Bath and North East
Somerset Placemaking Plan.

13 Implementation of Wildlife Scheme (Pre-occupation)

No occupation of the development hereby approved shall commence until a report
produced by a suitably experienced ecologist confirming and demonstrating, using
photographs where appropriate, completion and implementation of all approved ecological
mitigation and enhancement measures in accordance with approved details as described
in the approved Extended Phase | Ecological Survey dated May 2018 (Stark Ecology) and
approved details of wildlife protection measures, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To demonstrate the completed implementation of wildlife protection and
Ecological mitigation measures, to prevent ecological harm and to provide biodiversity
gain in accordance with policies NE3 of the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan.

14 Landscaping Implementation (Compliance)

All hard and/or soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with the programme (phasing) agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants indicated on the approved scheme which,
within a period of five years from the date of the development being completed, die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced during the next
planting season with other trees or plants of a species and size to be first approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. All hard landscape works shall be permanently
retained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the landscape scheme is implemented and maintained in
accordance with Policies D.2 and D.4 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking
Plan.

15 Water Efficiency (Compliance)

The approved dwellings shall be constructed to meet the national optional Building
Regulations requirement for water efficiency of 110 litres per person per day.

Reason: In the interests of water efficiency in accordance with Policy SCR5 of the Bath
and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

16 Reporting of Unexpected Contamination (Compliance)

Page 32



In the event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development, work must be ceased and it must be reported in writing
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority Contaminated
Land Department shall be consulted to provide advice regarding any further works
required. Unexpected contamination may be indicated by unusual colour, odour, texture or
containing unexpected foreign material.

Reason: In order to ensure that the land is suitable for the intended uses and to ensure
that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors and in accordance with section 11 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

17 Timber Privacy Screen (Compliance)

The timber privacy screen to south-east window of the first floor bedroom (as indicated on
drawing number 14B) of plot 4 shall be installed prior to the occupation of plot 4. The
timber privacy screen shall be retained permanently thereafter.

Reason: To limit views towards adjoining residential properties in West View Road in the
interests of residential amenity in accordance with policy D6 of the Bath and North East
Somerset Placemaking Plan.

18 Parking (Compliance)

The areas allocated for parking and turning on the submitted plan shall be kept clear of
obstruction and shall not be used other than for the parking of vehicles in connection with
the development hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure sufficient parking and turning areas are retained at all times in the
interests of amenity and highways safety in accordance with Policy ST7 of the Bath and
North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

19 Plans List (Compliance)
The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.

PLANS LIST:

21301 SITE LOCATION PLAN
213 02 BLOCK PLAN

213 03 EXISTING SITE PLAN

21304 D GROUND FLOOR PLANS
21305C FIRST FLOOR PLANS

21306 C ROOF PLANS

21307 C OVERLOOKING PLAN

213 08A SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE PLAN
213 09A SERVICES LAYOUT

21310C REFUSE MANAGEMENT

21311 PLOT 1 ELEVATIONS
21312 PLOT 1 PLANS

Page 33



21313 A

PLOT 4 ELEVATIONS

21314 B PLOT 4 PLANS

21315 PLOT 3 ELEVATIONS

213 16 PLOT 3 PLANS

213 17 PLOT 5 ELEVATIONS

213 18B PLOT 5 PLANS

213 19A PLOT 2 PLANS

213 20A PLOT 2 ELEVATIONS

213 21B SITE SECTIONS

21322 C SITE SECTIONS

213 23B PROPOSED SITE SECTIONS

213 24A CANTILEVERED TERRACE

213 25A FOUNDATION LAYOUTS

21326 B FOUNDATIONS AND SERVICES PLAN
078 004 F BOUNDARY TREATMENT PLAN

078 005 A TREE RETENTION AND REMOVAL PLAN
078006 D BOUNDARY MANAGEMENT PLAN
078010 B LANDSCAPE SECTIONS

078001 G LANDSCAPE PLAN

078 200 E  PLANTING PLAN

IMA-17-204 001 F SCHEMATIC DRAINAGE LAYOUT

IMA-17-204 003 B VEHICLE TRACKING
IMA-17-204 004 B VEHICLE TRACKING

DECISION MAKING STATEMENT

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Framework. For the reasons
given, and expanded upon in a related case officer's report, a positive view of the
submitted proposals was taken and consent was granted.

Condition Categories
The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is
required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.g.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Page 34



Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens
after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

Community Infrastructure Levy

You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. Before commencing any
development on site you should ensure you are familiar with the CIL process. If the
development approved by this permission is CIL liable there are requirements to assume
liability and notify the Council before development commences, failure to comply with the
regulations can result in surcharges and additional payments. Full details about the CIL
Charge including, amount and process for payment will be sent out in a CIL Liability
Notice which you will receive shortly. Further details are available here:
www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil

Highways Act 1980

The applicant should be advised to contact the Highway Maintenance Team at
Highways@bathnes.gov.uk with regard to securing a licence under Section 184 of the
Highways Act 1980 for the amendment of a vehicular crossing. The access shall not be
brought into use until the details of the access have been approved and constructed in
accordance with the current Specification.

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

ltem No: 04

Application No:  18/01510/LBA

Site Location: 31 Sion Hill, Lansdown, Bath, Bath And North East Somerset

Ward: Lansdown Parish: N/A LB Grade: Il

Application Type: Listed Building Consent (Alts/exts)

Proposal: Internal and external alterations to insert pair of new windows to
ground floor of rear elevation and new joinery details to existing rear
doors.

Constraints: Article 4 Bath Demolition Wall, Article 4 Reg 7: Estate Agent, Article 4

HMO, Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent,
Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Conservation Area, Policy CP9
Affordable Housing Zones, Listed Building, MOD Safeguarded Areas,

Page 35




Policy NE1 Green Infrastructure Network, Policy NE2A Landscapes
and the green set, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Ms Kate Bernstein
Expiry Date: 4th July 2018
Case Officer: Caroline Waldron

DECISION CONSENT

1 Time Limit - Listed Building Consent (Compliance)
The works hereby approved shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the
date of this consent.

Reason: To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 (as amended).

2 Plans List (Compliance)
The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.
PLANS LIST:

Drawings

1073:S1 SURVEY GROUND FLOOR PLAN
1073:S2 SURVEY WEST ELEVATION

1073:S3 SURVEY KITCHEN WINDOW ELEVATION
1073:S4 SURVEY KITCHEN WINDOW DETAIL
1073-02 PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Date stamped: 5th April 2018

Drawings

1073-01A PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION

1073-03A PROPOSED SASH WINDOW DETAILS

1073-04A PROPOSED KITCHEN DOORS DETAIL

Date stamped: 9th May 2018

Other documents

Design and Access and Heritage Statement date stamped: 5th April 2018
Historic Building Report date stamped: 23rd May 2018

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

Condition Categories

Page 36




The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is
required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.g.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens
after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

Community Infrastructure Levy

You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. Before commencing any
development on site you should ensure you are familiar with the CIL process. If the
development approved by this permission is CIL liable there are requirements to assume
liability and notify the Council before development commences, failure to comply with the
regulations can result in surcharges and additional payments. Full details about the CIL
Charge including, amount and process for payment will be sent out in a CIL Liability
Notice which you will receive shortly. Further details are available here:
www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil

Item No: 05

Application No:  18/02224/FUL

Site Location: 146 Wellsway, Bath, Bath And North East Somerset, BA2 4SE
Ward: Lyncombe Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A

Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Provision of off road parking area for 1no vehicle

Page 37




Constraints: Article 4 Bath Demolition Wall, Article 4 Reg 7: Estate Agent, Article 4
HMO, Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent,
Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Conservation Area, Policy CP9
Affordable Housing Zones, MOD Safeguarded Areas, Policy NE2A
Landscapes and the green set, Policy NE5 Ecological Networks,
SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Mr & Mrs R & J Starkey
Expiry Date: 2nd August 2018
Case Officer: Chloe Buckingham

DECISION REFUSE

1 The demolition of the boundary wall would involve the erosion of a characteristic feature

of the Conservation Area and would neither preserve nor enhance the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area but instead cause it harm. Therefore, the proposal
is contrary to policies D1, D2, D4, D5 and HE1 of the Bath and North East Somerset
Placemaking Plan (2017) and the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework
(2012).

PLANS LIST:
This decision relates to;

Site Location Plan, Existing Plans and Elevations and Proposed Plans and Elevations
received 21st May 2018.

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework. Notwithstanding informal
advice offered by the Local Planning Authority the submitted application was unacceptable
for the stated reasons and the applicant was advised that the application was to be
recommended for refusal. Despite this the applicant chose not to withdraw the application
and having regard to the need to avoid unnecessary delay the Local Planning Authority
moved forward and issued its decision. In considering whether to prepare a further
application the applicant's attention is drawn to the original discussion/negotiation.

Page 38




Agenda ltem 9

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: Development Management Committee
AGENDA
ITEM
MEETING 29th August 2018 NUMBER
DATE:
RESPONSIBLE Mark Reynolds — Group Manager (Development
OFFICER: Management) (Telephone: 01225 477079)
TITLE: APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

WARDS:

ALL

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

BACKGROUND PAPERS

List of background papers relating to this report of the Group Manager, Development Management about applications/proposals for
Planning Permission etc. The papers are available for inspection online at http://planning.bathnes.gov.uk/PublicAccess/.

[1] Application forms, letters or other consultation documents, certificates, notices, correspondence and all drawings submitted by
and/or on behalf of applicants, Government Departments, agencies or Bath and North East Somerset Council in connection
with each application/proposal referred to in this Report.

[2] Department work sheets relating to each application/proposal as above.
[3] Responses on the application/proposals as above and any subsequent relevant correspondence from:
(0] Sections and officers of the Council, including:

Building Control

Environmental Services

Transport Development

Planning Policy, Environment and Projects, Urban Design (Sustainability)

(i) The Environment Agency

(i)  Wessex Water

(iv)  Bristol Water

(V) Health and Safety Executive

(vi)  British Gas

(vii)  Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (English Heritage)

(viii)  The Garden History Society

(ix)  Royal Fine Arts Commission

(x) Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

(xi)  Nature Conservancy Council

(xii)  Natural England

(xiii)  National and local amenity societies

(xiv)  Other interested organisations

(xv)  Neighbours, residents and other interested persons

(xvi)  Any other document or correspondence specifically identified with an application/proposal
[4] The relevant provisions of Acts of Parliament, Statutory Instruments or Government Circulars, or documents produced by the

Council or another statutory body such as the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan (including waste and minerals policies)
adopted October 2007

The following notes are for information only:-

[1] “Background Papers” are defined in the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 do not include those disclosing
“Exempt” or “Confidential Information” within the meaning of that Act. There may be, therefore, other papers relevant to an
application which will be relied on in preparing the report to the Committee or a related report, but which legally are not required
to be open to public inspection.

Page 39



http://planning.bathnes.gov.uk/PublicAccess/

(2

(3]

(4]

ITEM
NO.

01

02

03

04

05

The papers identified or referred to in this List of Background Papers will only include letters, plans and other documents
relating to applications/proposals referred to in the report if they have been relied on to a material extent in producing the
report.

Although not necessary for meeting the requirements of the above Act, other letters and documents of the above kinds
received after the preparation of this report and reported to and taken into account by the Committee will also be available for
inspection.

Copies of documents/plans etc. can be supplied for a reasonable fee if the copyright on the particular item is not thereby
infringed or if the copyright is owned by Bath and North East Somerset Council or any other local authority.

INDEX

APPLICATION NO.

& TARGET DATE:

18/01744/FUL
2 July 2018

18/03034/FUL
3 September 2018

18/01240/FUL
31 August 2018

18/02507/FUL
2 August 2018

18/02256/FUL
31 August 2018

APPLICANTS NAME/SITE ADDRESS
and PROPOSAL

Bainesbury Developments Limited
St Hugh's Rc Church, Wells Road,
Westfield, ,

Conversion of former Mass Centre to
provide 8 No. residential units with
associated car parking and incidental
works of demolition

Mr & Mrs Mallon

Dryleaze, Bath Road, Saltford, Bristol,
Bath And North East Somerset
Erection of two storey side extension
and loft conversion with front dormer
window following removal of existing
conservatory (resubmission following
withdrawal of 18/00679/FUL)

Mrs Amanda Ridings
Stables, Access Road To Weston
Resevoir, Upper Weston, Bath,

Conversion of stables to 2no. bedroom
single storey dwelling house (Class C3)

and associated works.

Mrs Josephine Vercoe

97 Sheridan Road, Whiteway, Bath,
Bath And North East Somerset, BA2
1RA

Change of use from dwelling house
(use class C3) to HMO (use class C4)

Mr Dan McGauley

99 Sheridan Road, Whiteway, Bath,

Bath And North East Somerset, BA2
1RA

Change of use from a 4 bed dwelling

house (Use Class C3) to a 4 bed House

in Multiple Occupation (Use Class C4)
(Retrospective)

Page 40

WARD:

Westfield

Farmboroug
h

Bathavon
North

Twerton

Twerton

OFFICER:

Samantha
Mason

Rae
Mepham

Rae
Mepham

Christine
Moorfield

Thomas
Boyle

REC.:

PERMIT

REFUSE

PERMIT

PERMIT

PERMIT



06 18/02432/FUL Mr P Collins Westmorela  Dominic PERMIT
1 August 2018 56 Brook Road, Twerton, Bath, Bath nd Battrick
And North East Somerset, BA2 3RS
Change of Use from 6no. bedroom
house in multiple occupation (use class
C4) to 7no. bedroom house in multiple
occupation (sui generis use).

07 18/01994/FUL Mrs Deborah Phillips Chew Valley  Dominic REFUSE
31 August 2018 Rose Cottage, Church Lane, Chew North Battrick
Stoke, Bristol, Bath And North East
Somerset

Erection of a rear two storey extension.

REPORT OF THE GROUP MANAGER, DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT ON
APPLICATIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT

[tem No: 01
Application No:  18/01744/FUL
Site Location:

Okchardleigh villa

0

""
Green Gables o ,
v = =
j ot

W o

Ward: Westfield Parish: Westfield LB Grade: N/A

Ward Members:  Councillor Eleanor Jackson Councillor Robin Moss

Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Conversion of former Mass Centre to provide 8 No. residential units
with associated car parking and incidental works of demolition

Constraints: Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Coal - Standing Advice Area, Conservation

Area, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing Zones, Housing Development
Boundary, Policy NE1 Green Infrastructure Network, SSSI - Impact

Risk Zones,
Applicant: Bainesbury Developments Limited
Expiry Date: 2nd July 2018
Case Officer: Samantha Mason

Page 41



To view the case click on the link here.

REPORT
Reasons for Reporting Application to Committee:

Westfield Parish Council has objected to the scheme. The case Officer is minded to
permit. As per the Councils scheme of delegation the application has been referred to the
Chair of the Committee. The Chair of the committee stated the following in her decision; 'l
have studied the application & related information including comments & suggested
conditions from statutory consultees, | also note the objection reasons from WPC. The
points raised have been addressed by the Officer as the application has been assessed
against relevant planning policy however | feel this site is within a prominent area of
Radstock & the points raised should be debated in the public arena therefore |
recommend the application be determined by the DMC.'

Site Description and Proposal:

The application refers to a site in Westfield on the northern side of Wells Road that is
currently the site of a redundant church. The site is within the Conservation Area and is
considered to be an Undesignated Heritage Asset.

Planning permission is sought for the conversion of the former church to provide eight
residential units with associated car parking and incidental works of demolition.

Relevant Planning History:
There is no relevant planning history on this site.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
Consultation Responses:

Westfield Parish Council: The Committee referred to the Westfield Submission Draft
Neighbourhood Plan and, whilst this Plan has not yet been to referendum, it requested
that the principles within it are taken into consideration in the Parish Council's objection to
this planning application. The Committee drew attention to the unacceptably high density
of housing which will have an impact on the volume of traffic accessing the site from the
steep, narrow and curved part of Wells Road. For this reason it draws attention to Policy 1
items 1, 2 and 3 of the Submission Draft Neighbourhood Plan.

Conservation: No objection subject to amendment and conditions.

Amendment to secure;

o] Retention of the existing stained glass window (upper north west gable).

o] Retention of the recessed arched opening (south west wall) at ground and first floor
(currently only showing on the ground floor plan).

o] Use of aluminium frames only to the north east facing windows (i.e. no timber
subframe)

o] Omit timber cladding to north east facing windows and instead incorporate a

recessed matching stone band across all four north east facing openings sufficient in

Page 42


http://isharemaps.bathnes.gov.uk/data.aspx?requesttype=parsetemplate&template=DevelopmentControlApplication.tmplt&basepage=data.aspx&Filter=%5erefval%5e='18/01744/FUL'&SearchLayer=DCApplications

height to mask the first floor line and for the remaining areas of window (above and below
the band) to be glazed with minimal frame sections.

Conditions to secure;

o] all external materials (including landscaped area), all external colours and finishes,
details of rooflights (conservation type i.e. slim line/low profile), window details (to include
frames, stone band, glazing and typical sections), schedule of existing fixtures and fittings
to be retained together with detail of any necessary repair and a hard and soft landscaping
scheme to the front and south west side of the building.

Conservation Update: no objection subject to conditions.
Highways: No objection subject to conditions

Ecology: No objections subject to conditions.
Representations Received:

One comment of support has been received from a resident as follows; a good use of
what could potentially become a derelict site. Design proposed does not change the
character of the building. Perhaps consideration should be given to making these
retirement apartments for people to downsize to and free up other local housing stock for
young families in the area.

Parking is likely to require a permit system as the space is currently used by more than
those entitled to, as such a similar system may need to be considered for our own private
road next door to prevent that becoming the overflow parking for the town.

POLICIES/LEGISLATION

The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the Council
on 10th July 2014. The Core Strategy now forms part of the statutory Development Plan
and will be given full weight in the determination of planning applications. The
Development Plan for Bath and North East Somerset comprises:

o] Bath & North East Somerset Core Strategy (July 2014)
o] Bath & North East Somerset Placemaking Plan (July 2017)

o] West of England Joint Waste Core Strategy (2011)

o] Bath & North East Somerset saved Local Plan policies (2007) not replaced by the
Core Strategy or the Placemaking Plan:

- Policy GDS.1 Site allocations and development requirements (policy framework)

- Policy GDS.1/K2: South West Keynsham (site)

- Policy GDS.1/NR2: Radstock Railway Land (site)

- Policy GDS.1/V3: Paulton Printing Factory (site)

- Policy GDS.1/V8: Former Radford Retail System's Site, Chew Stoke (site)

o] Made Neighbourhood Plans

Core Strategy:

Page 43



The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the Councll
on 10th July 2014. The following policies of the Core Strategy are relevant to the
determination of this application:

CP2: Sustainable Construction
CP6: Environmental Quality
DW1.: District Wide Spatial Strategy

Placemaking Plan:

The Placemaking Plan for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the
Council on 13th July 2017. The following policies of the Placemaking Plan are relevant to
the determination of this application:

D1: General Urban Design Principles

D2: Local Character and Distinctiveness

D.3: Urban Fabric

D.5: Building Design

D.6: Amenity

HEZ1: Historic Environment

ST7: Transport requirements for managing development

H7: Housing Accessibility

SCR1: On-site Renewable Energy Requirement
STR5: Water Efficiency

SU1: Sustainable Drainage Policy

The amended National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in July 2018
and is a material consideration. Due consideration has been given to the provisions of the
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).

Conservation Areas

In addition, there is a duty placed on the Council under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act to pay special attention to the preservation or
enhancement of the character of the surrounding Conservation Area.

OFFICER ASSESSMENT

The main issues to consider are:
- Principle of development
- Loss of community facility
- Design and Heritage

- Residential amenity

- Highways parking

- Ecology

- Any other matters

Principle of Residential Development:

Page 44



The proposal site is located within the Westfield Housing development boundary and as
such the principle of residential development exists subject to other planning
considerations as addressed below.

Policy H3 supports the subdivision of existing buildings unless the use would create a
severe transport impact, prejudice commercial ground floor use, or harm a listed building.
The property is not listed and the property is not in commercial use, therefore these two
criteria are met. Highways issues are discussed below.

Loss of Community Facility:

The council has adopted the Placemaking Plan for Bath and North East Somerset. Policy
LCR1 of the Placemaking Plan has regard to the safeguarding of local community
facilities, it states that;

'‘Development involving the loss of land and/ or buildings valued as a community facility
will only be permitted provided:

1. There is adequate local provision of facilities of equivalent community value; or

2. Alternative facilities of equivalent local community value will be provided in the locality;
or

3. The proposed loss is an integral part of changes by a public service provider which will
improve the overall quality or accessibility of public services in the locality.’

The church is considered to be a community facility. The scheme would therefore result in
loss of an existing, albeit vacant, community facility. The wording of the policy is such that
only one of the criteria must be met in order to satisfy the policy. In this instance it is not
proposed to provide an alternative facility elsewhere, nor is the loss of the facility an
integral change by a public service provider, therefore criteria 2 and 3 will not/ do not need
to be met. Criteria 1 however must be satisfied in this case.

The agent has provided a planning statement setting out information in regards to local
provision and marketing of the property.

The decision to discontinue the use of the Mass Centre was due to a fall in the number of
available clergy, decreasing congregation and the need to consolidate services
elsewhere. The community of Radstock is well served by a large number of places for
Christian Worship and for assembly. The circumstances underlying the decision to close
St Hugh's as a Mass Centre therefore reflects the fact that there is adequate existing local
provision of facilities of equivalent community value elsewhere.

Additional to this a marketing exercise undertaken by Colliers International has confirmed
that there is no community demand for the building. A report of the marketing exercise
compiled by Colliers is included with the application. The building was marketed as
suitable for a number of uses subject to necessary consents. A guide price was not
identified to ensure that prospective community groups were not deterred from making
inquiries and/or expressing an interest in the building. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no
offers to purchase the property were received from any community group during the
marketing campaign. This indicates that the building is either not 'valued' as a community
building, and/or there is no community demand for it.

Page 45



Overall it is considered that the proposal satisfies Policy LCR1 of the Placemaking Plan
and the loss of the mass centre as a community facility is acceptable.

Design and Heritage:

The application site is located within Radstock conservation area; the significance of the
conservation area results primarily from its industrial (mining) past and incorporates the
main coalmining areas, buildings and associated features which contribute to the historical
form and character of Radstock. The site falls within 2 character areas identified in the
Conservation Area Assessment of Radstock (1999). The assessment emphasises the
need for enhancement objectives to conserve built structures and renovate for appropriate
uses, retain the organic form of the centre (including maintaining and re-defining historic
boundaries and routes) and seek to maintain the historical integrity of the area.

St. Hugh's RC Church is not on the statutory list of listed buildings. However, to place the
application site in its historical context it is noted that in close proximity to the site there is
a small 'L' shaped cluster of non-designated historic buildings. To the front and east side
of the Church is a hard surfaced car park and to the west, a modern housing
development. Stone walls feature to the front and west side of the site.

The Church would fall within the definition of 'heritage asset' as defined in Annex 2 of the
NPPF, which describes a 'heritage asset' as a building identified as having a degree of
significance meriting consideration in planning decisions, because of its heritage interest.
'Heritage asset' includes assets identified by the local planning authority (including local
listing). Under paragraph 197 of the NPPF the effect of an application on the significance
of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the
application. In weighing applications that affect directly or indirectly non designated
heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any
harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.

‘The Buildings of England Somerset: North and Bristol' by A. Foyle & N. Pevsner (2011)
makes reference to St. Hugh RC Church as a plain stone barn, perhaps C17-C18 opened
1929 as a mission from Downside Abbey. Much repaired after a fire in 1991. Information
submitted with this application states that the building originated as a printing works, and
was subsequently converted to Church use in 1929, which continued until 2015. This
former Church building has been altered over time mainly due to its various uses and
extension. Each elevation of the original building contains features of some interest and
the building stone would appear to be White Lias. A modern single storey extension
attaches to the rear and south west side of the building and is of little architectural
merit/interest.

The proposed conversion would result in the complete remodelling of the building's
interior. Of the original building the existing nave, presbytery, store and entrance lobby
would be subdivided, some existing openings blocked up, new openings formed and
former opening reinstated. Subdivision of the modern single storey extension is also
proposed.

No objection is raised to the proposed subdivision of the modern extension on the basis

that it is of no particular architectural interest and is lacking in significance (as identified
above). During the course of the application revised plans were received addressing

Page 46



comments made by the conservation officer, this included the retention of the recessed
arched opening (south west wall) and incorporation of a recessed matching stone band
across all four north east facing openings.

The proposed alterations to the main nave would have most impact on the significance of
the building due to loss of the currently undivided space. At ground floor the sense of
openness would be lost. At first floor the ceiling void and rafters would remain largely
exposed and partitions have, where practical, been placed where they would correspond
with the rafters. A majority of existing openings would be retained and it is expected that
they be sensitively and appropriately detailed on the external face (a condition will be
attached requiring a schedule of existing fixtures and fittings to be retained, together with
full details of any necessary repair). Roof light details and joinery details were received
during the course of the application and found acceptable removing the need for pre-
commencement conditions on these two apects.

The ecclesiastical items attached to the front south east facing elevation of the building
would be retained. This elevation would remain unchanged with the exception of the
entrance door to the modern extension, which would be improved by way of the
introduction of an arched head. External alterations would include infill of an existing
window opening/removal of stained glass window on the north west facing gable and the
formation of a variety of new openings on the north west and south west elevations.
Following negotiations with the agent the stained glass window will be incorporated into
the south elevation of the scheme.

On balance, and in accordance with paragraph 197 of the NPPF, it is considered that the
significance of the non-designated heritage asset would not be unduly affected; the
external envelope of the building would result in visual improvement and although the
openness of the single space nave would be impacted upon, its interest as it currently
stands is not sufficient to merit its retention; openings would be retained around its
perimeter and it is recommended that the stained glass window be incorporated within the
scheme. The scale of harm/loss to the building would be commensurate with its setting
and significance.

In this case it is concluded that no harm would be caused to the Radstock Conservation
Area (or its setting), as designated heritage asset. The proposal would preserve and
enhance the Area returning a vacant building back to active use and resulting in visual
improvements to its exterior and setting. The proposal would be consistent with
maintaining the vitality, viability and historic character of the area. Landscaping of the area
to the front and south west side of the building has the potential to enhance the character
and appearance of the conservation area.

The Westfield Draft Neighbourhood Plan is now at submission stage. The plan can
currently be given little weight given the stage at which it is at. However it is noted that
Policy 1 of the draft plan has regard to residential infill and backland development and
Policy 3 to Housing Design. It is considered that the proposal is in conformity with these
policies as it is not infill or backland development, but conversion; it is not considered to
be overdevelopment of the site; and given the sympathetic minimal external alterations to
the existing building the proposal responds to the character of the surrounding area in line
with policies 1 and 3.

Page 47



Accessibility Standards:

Placemaking Plan Policy H7 requires 19% of all new market housing to be provided to
enhanced accessibility standards meeting the optional technical standard 4(2) in the
Building Regulations Approved Document M. The 19% is based on a 'rounded up' figure.
Therefore 2 of the 8 proposed dwellings must meet enhanced accessibility standards.

The internal access will comply with Approved Document M of the Building Regulations,
including level entry where possible, appropriate door widths and other detailed
requirements. The proposal meets with the above requirements.

It is noted that the Draft Neighbourhood Plan's Policy 2 refers to housing accessibility
standards. Its states that for market housing, new dwellings should be built to the
‘accessible and adaptable’ standard in Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations, unless
specific site conditions make this impracticable. In this case the neighbourhood plan is at
draft stage and can be given little weight. The need to comply with policy H7 is considered
sufficient and will achieve 2 dwellings at the enhanced standards therefore meeting the
neighbourhood plan policy in part. This is considered to be satisfactory.

Residential Amenity:

Policy D.6 sets out to ensure developments provide an appropriate level of amenity space
for new and future occupiers, relative to their use and avoiding harm to private amenity in
terms of privacy, light and outlook/overlooking.

The site is located in the town centre, with car parking bounding the site to the east and
north, the road bounding the site to the south and some residential development to the
west. The proposal site is sloping. Given the design, scale, massing and siting of the
proposed development the proposal would not cause significant harm to the amenities of
any occupiers or adjacent occupiers through loss of light, overshadowing, overbearing
impact, loss of privacy, noise, smell, traffic or other disturbance. The proposal accords
with policy D6 of the Placemaking Plan for Bath and North East Somerset (2017). The
proposal is also considered to accord with the residential amenity element of policy 1 of
the draft Westfield Neighbourhood Plan.

Highways Safety and Parking:

Policy ST7 states that development will only be permitted provided, amongst other things,
the development avoids an increase in on street parking in the vicinity of the site which
would detract from highway safety and/ or residential amenity.

Policy ST7 sets out the parking standards required for new residential development. The
proposal is seeking permission for 6 two-bedroom flats and 2 one-bedroom flats. The
parking standards require 1 space per one bed dwelling and 2 spaces per 2 bed dwelling.
Therefore 14 spaces would be required with this application. Provision is made in the
application for a total of 12 parking spaces to serve the proposed development. This is
less than the minimum standard set out in the Schedule 2 to Policy ST7. A flexible
approach is taken to applying the policy, the pre-amble to policy ST7 states that any
departure from the prescribed standards will need to be fully justified by an assessment.

Page 48



The application is supported by a parking review, and this considers how appropriate the
proposed parking levels are in support of the residential development. This has reviewed
the adopted Placemaking Plan parking standards and how the minimum standards could
be adjusted to reflect the site location. There is no objection to this approach and it is
agreed that the proposed parking levels would be appropriate for this scale of
development. The submission notes that there are opportunities for short stay visitor
parking nearby. The site plan also shows that secure bicycle parking would be available.
Furthermore it is noted that the site is located in a sustainable location.

Having reviewed the planning application and considered the type of use proposed, the
highway authority raises no objection to the principle of the development at this location.
The site access is well established and there is adequate visibility provided in both
directions along the Wells Road from the access point.

It was requested that a planning condition requiring a Construction Management Plan, to
be agreed before commence of the development, was attached to any planning consent.
The applicant has now submitted a Construction Management Plan. The highway
authority is satisfied that the Plan is appropriate for the scale and type of development at
this location. A such this overcomes the need for a further Plan to be submitted at a later
date, and the planning condition is no longer required.

The means of access and parking arrangements are acceptable and maintain highway
safety standards. The proposal accords with policy ST7 of the Placemaking Plan for Bath
and North East Somerset (2017) and the NPPF.

Ecology:

Bat surveys have been completed of the building, and confirms a brown long-eared bat
roost present in the roof.

The proposal will require a European Protected Species (EPS) Licence. The LPA must be
satisfied, prior to issuing a planning consent, that the "three tests" of the Habitats
Regulations would be met by the proposal i.e. that the conservation status of the affected
species will not be harmed; that there is no alternative solution; and that there are
"imperative reasons of overriding public interest" ("IROPI") - and that an EPS licence
would be granted.

Test 1 - Does the development meet a purpose of preserving public health or public safety
or other imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social or
economic nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance to the environment?

The public benefits should be commensurate with the level of impact. The current building
is currently vacant and could fall into disrepair if remaining this way over time. the
proposed works will provide public benefit through enhancing the street scene and
Conservation Area - for example through the provision of an appropriate parking area and
landscaping which is considered to be an improvement to the current site setting - and
through re-establishing the non-designated heritage asset. There are sustainability
benefits in converting an existing disused building into a dwelling. Furthermore, although
modest in size, the level of conversion will provide jobs in the construction phase, albeit
only for a short period of time. The test can be said to be passed.

Page 49



Test 2 - There is no satisfactory alternative.

The development proposes conversion works to the non-designated heritage asset which
is currently vacant. This property has been extensively marketed over a period of 10
months, during which no proceedable interest came forward from a party interested in the
building for its current use or an alternative community use. Other alternatives such as a
complete demolition would not be a suitable alternative as this would result in the loss of
the building. If the building remains vacant it is likely to fall into disrepair. Therefor it is
considered that there is no satisfactory alternative other than what is put forward as these
works are necessary to protect the non-designated heritage asset and the Conservation
Area setting.

Test 3 - The action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population
of the species.

The submitted bat report (Crossman Associates, 4th June 2018) recommends:
- Retention of roof void being used by bats

- Installation of bat tubes

- Implementation of bat license and precautionary approach to works

The scheme now incorporates the recommendations and provision of a bat loft within part
of the roof space is shown. Written confirmation has also now been received of the
dimensions of the roof roost space which will have a lockable hatch for access by licenced
personnel only. Subject to this, and conditions to secure the implementation of the bat
mitigation scheme, it is considered that the third test of the habitats regulations is met i.e.
that conservation status of the affected species will not be harmed. Furthermore the
council ecologist has not objected to the scheme.

Landscaping:

Apart from a triangle of grass to the north of the building, the surrounding land within the
plot is tarmacked. It is proposed to create an area of hard landscaping to the south of the
building. It is considered this will provide an acceptable level of amenity space to
occupiers of the building, creating a semi-private space, as well as enhance the general
setting of the building. This is in keeping with surrounding landscaping.

Policy LCR9 states that all residential development will be expected to incorporate
opportunities for local food growing (e.g border planting, window boxes, vertical planting,
raised beds etc.).

A number of stone planters have been proposed with the application which will allow for
food growing opportunities for future occupiers. This is considered to satisfy policy LCR9.

Other Matters:
Policy SCR5 states that all dwellings will be expected to meet the national optional

buildings regulations requirements for water efficiency of 110L per person per day. This
can be secured by compliance condition.

Page 50



The policy also states that rainwater harvesting or other methods of capturing rainwater
for the use by residents will be required for all residential development. In this case water
butts have been proposed with the scheme. This is considered to satisfy policy SCR5.

It is noted that policy 3 of the Draft Westfield Neighbourhood Plan has regard to energy
efficient design and climatic resilience. Two electric charging points have been provided
with the scheme which meets with the requirements of this policy. This is welcomed
considering that at its current stage the Neighbourhood Plan holds little weight.

Conclusion:

It is therefore considered that the proposal complies with the relevant planning policies as
outlined above and it is recommended for permission.

RECOMMENDATION
PERMIT

CONDITIONS

1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission

2 Fixture and Fittings Schedule (Pre-commencement)

Prior to commencement of works a schedule of existing fixtures and fittings to be retained
together with full details of any necessary repair shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Existing fixtures and fittings scheduled for
retention shall remain in place for the lifetime of the development. Any repairs shall only
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard features of special architectural and historical interest and preserve
the character and appearance of the building in accordance with Policy CP6 of the Bath
and North East Somerset Core Strategy and Policy HE1 of the Bath and North East
Somerset Placemaking Plan.

3 Hard and Soft Landscaping (Compliance)

All hard and/or soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with the programme (phasing) agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. All hard landscape works shall be permanently retained in
accordance with the approved details.

Page 51



Reason: To ensure that the landscape scheme is implemented and maintained in
accordance with Policies D1, D2 and NE2 of the Bath and North East Somerset
Placemaking Plan.

4 Parking (Compliance)

The areas allocated for parking and turning on the submitted plan shall be kept clear of
obstruction and shall not be used other than for the parking of vehicles in connection with
the development hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure sufficient parking and turning areas are retained at all times in the
interests of amenity and highways safety in accordance with Policy ST7 of the Bath and
North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

5 Water Efficiency (Compliance)
The approved dwellings shall be constructed to meet the national optional Building
Regulations requirement for water efficiency of 110 litres per person per day.

Reason: In the interests of water efficiency in accordance with Policy SCR5 of the Bath
and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

6 Water Efficiency - Rainwater Harvesting (Pre-occupation)
No occupation of the approved dwellings shall commence until a Water Butt as shown on
the approved plans is installed.

Reason: In the interests of water efficiency in accordance with Policy SCR5 of the
Placemaking Plan.

7 Plans List (Compliance)
The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.

PLANS LIST:

This decision relates to the following plans:

20 Apr 2018 P03 Block Plan

20 Apr 2018 Location Plan

16 Aug 2018 1789 P02G Plans and Elevations

13 Aug 2018 Construction Management Site Plan

Condition Categories

The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is

required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Page 52



Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.g.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens
after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

Page 53



Item No: 02
Application No:  18/03034/FUL
Site Location: Dryleaze Bath Road Saltford Bristol Bath And North East Somerset

L
Po Dryleaze G%?@E&”ﬂ;a
&

fp® PAER

ihton Leaz

Ward: Farmborough Parish: Corston LB Grade: N/A
Ward Members:  Councillor S Davis
Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension and loft conversion with front
dormer window following removal of existing conservatory
(resubmission following withdrawal of 18/00679/FUL)

Constraints: Saltford Airfield 3km buffer, Agric Land Class 1,2,3a, Policy B4 WHS -
Indicative Extent, Policy CP8 Green Belt, Policy CP9 Affordable
Housing Zones, Greenbelt, Hazards & Pipelines, MOD Safeguarded
Areas, Policy NE1 Green Infrastructure Network, Policy NE2A
Landscapes and the green set, Policy NE5 Ecological Networks,
Public Right of Way, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Mallon
Expiry Date: 3rd September 2018
Case Officer: Rae Mepham

To view the case click on the link here.

REPORT
Reason application being referred to committee

Request from Cllr Davis that the application be referred to committee if the officer is
minded to refuse as the proposals respond to and improve the host dwelling and leads to
lower percentage increase in the Green Belt than permitted development rights.

As CllIr Davis is the current Chair of the Development Management Committee, there is no
requirement to complete a Chairmans Delegated Decision Report.

Page 54



http://isharemaps.bathnes.gov.uk/data.aspx?requesttype=parsetemplate&template=DevelopmentControlApplication.tmplt&basepage=data.aspx&Filter=%5erefval%5e='18/03034/FUL'&SearchLayer=DCApplications

Details of location and proposal

Dryleaze is a semi-detached dwelling located within the Bristol/Bath Green Belt. This
application is for the erection of a two storey side extension and loft conversion with front
dormer window following the removal of existing conservatory.

Relevant history

18/00679/FUL - WD - 5 June 2018 - Erection of two storey side extension and loft
conversion with front dormer window following removal of existing conservatory.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
Consultation responses

Corston Parish Council - Comment:

Having reviewed the papers concerning this application and the guidance documents
related to permitted development, CPC notes that the proposed development appears to
be in excess of the SPD policy for increased volume in the green belt.

Equally, we recognise that if the application is refused then an even larger volume
development could be undertaken within the applicant's Permitted Development Rights.

Given the conflict between the two development policies, and the technical nature of the
interpretation, Corston PC recommends that the Development Management Committee
considers the application and decides which policy should take precedence on this
occasion.

Third party representations

None received.

POLICIES/LEGISLATION

On 13th July 2017 the Council adopted the B&NES Placemaking Plan. It now becomes
part of the statutory Development Plan for the district, against which planning applications
are determined. The statutory Development Plan for B&NES now comprises:

- Core Strategy (July 2014)
- Placemaking Plan (July 2017)
- B&NES Local Plan (2007) - only saved Policy GDS.1 relating to 4 part implemented sites

- Joint Waste Core Strategy
- Made Neighbourhood Plans

The following Core Strategy policies are applicable:

CP8 - Green Belt
DW1 - District Wide Spatial Strategy

The following B&NES Placemaking Plan policies have been considered:

Page 55



D2 - Local character and distinctiveness

D3 - Urban fabric

D5 - Building design

D6 - Amenity

GBL1 - Visual amenities of the Green Belt

GB3 - Extensions and alterations buildings in the Green Belt

Consideration has been given to the National Planning Policy Framework and the National
Planning Practice Guidance.

Existing dwellings in the Green Belt SPD 2008

OFFICER ASSESSMENT
/ul Principle of development

The property is sited within the Green Belt and as such Section 9 of the NPPF applies.
Para 89 allows for the extension of a building within the Green Belt, providing it does not
result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building.

The Council has produced the "Existing Dwellings in the Green Belt" SPD, which clarifies
a proportionate extension as being a volumatic increase of around a third, or 33%.

Historic maps indicate that the large rear extension was in place in 1885 and the lean to
was in place in 1903. "Original dwelling" is taken from the property as it was in 1948, so
these can be included within the calculations. A smaller garage structure also seems to be
in place in a 1960's map extract.

The original house volume is calculated to be around 763m3. The garage increase
resulted in around 112m3, and the proposed extensions to the dwelling will result in an
additional 315m3. Cumulatively, this would result in an increase of 55%, which is
considered to be a disproportionate increase. The proposal replaces an existing
conservatory, however is considered significantly larger than the existing structure. The
combination of the increase in volume and the introduction of a large two storey element
all contribute to the fact that the proposal is a disproportionate addition.

The applicant has come forward with very special circumstances by means of a fall back
position of implementing permitted development rights. A permitted development scheme
has been put forward as part of the application documents, and this does form a material
consideration.

In examples where permitted development has been used as the fall-back position, and
therefore able to be used as a very special circumstance, there has been a strong
likelihood that the fall-back position would be implemented. The court judgement referred
to (Mansell v Tonbridge and Malling BC [2017] EWCA Civ 1314) gives a detailed
explanation of this, and makes it clear that the fall-back position must be truly realistic, not
merely a theoretical or legal entitlement.

The previous application statement stated the following in regards to the permitted
development scheme:

Page 56



After some consideration the applicants felt that this would not benefit their needs in terms
of re-configuring the internal space within the dwelling.

This has now been updated to state:

Should planning permission not be forthcoming for this proposed development the
applicants would seek to implement the permitted development rights. This represents a
realistic fall-back option for development on this site.

There is no requirement for Certificates of Lawfulness to be submitted in order to
demonstrate a fallback position, however the existence of such, or an extant planning
permission, allow more weight to be given due to the higher likelihood of that fallback
position being carried out.

The PD scheme submitted within the application appears to be a demonstration of the
extent of the property's PD rights rather than a true alternative of the proposed scheme.
The majority of properties within the Green Belt benefit from permitted development rights,
and the fact that this legal entitlement exists does not necessarily mean that this is a
strong fall back position. The previous application already states that the PD alternatives
would not suit the applicant's needs, and thus would be unlikely to realistically be carried
out.

In this case it is not considered that the existence of permitted development rights are a
very special circumstance which would outweigh the harm set out within the NPPF from
inappropriate development. The proposal is harmful by definition, and therefore
recommended for refusal.

Character and appearance

The two storey extension has been set down from the ridgeline and eaves line of the host
property, with a staggered first floor to incorporate a balcony over the ground floor.
Although large, the extension is capable of being subservient to the existing building. The
proposed extension would use matching stone on the ground floor and dark cladding on
the upper floor, which assists in breaking up the bulk of the proposal.

The dormer window is fairly large and concerns were raised regarding this within the
previous application. The dormer is set down from the ridge, up from the eaves and
centrally within the roofline. On balance, the proposed dormer would not justify a reason
for refusal in itself, and on this occasion is considered to be acceptable.

Overall, subject to a condition requiring the submission of materials being added to any
approval, the overall character and appearance of the proposal is considered acceptable.

Residential amenity

The proposal is sited within a large plot of land, and at some distance to it's nearest
neighbour. It is not considered that the proposal would cause harm by either overlooking
or by causing an overbearing impact.

RECOMMENDATION

Page 57



REFUSE
REASON(S) FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development, due to the size, scale and siting of the extension would
result in a disproportionate addition over and above the size of the original dwelling which
would be harmful to openness and would be harmful to the rural character of the area.
The proposal represents inappropriate development within the Green Belt, which is, by
definition, harmful. No very special circumstances have been submitted which would be
sufficient to outweigh the presumption against inappropriate development in the Green
Belt. The proposal is contrary to policy CP8 of the Bath and North East Somerset Core
Strategy and policies GB1 and GB3 of the Placemaking Plan.

PLANS LIST:
This decision relates to:

13109/001 SITE LOCATION PLAN

13109/005 E PROPOSED PLANS

13109/006 E PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 1 OF 2
13109/007 E PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 2 OF 2
13109/009 A  PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLANS
13109/010 A° PROPOSED SITE PLAN

all received 9th July 2018

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework. The Local Planning
Authority acknowledges the approach outlined in paragraphs 39-43 in favour of front
loading and operates a pre-application advice service. Notwithstanding active
encouragement for pre-application dialogue the applicant did not seek to enter into
correspondence with the Local Planning Authority. The proposal was considered
unacceptable for the reasons given and the applicant was advised that the application was
to be recommended for refusal. Despite this the applicant chose not to withdraw the
application, and having regard to the need to avoid unnecessary delay the Local Planning
Authority moved forward and issued its decision.

[tem No: 03

Page 58



Application No:  18/01240/FUL
Site Location: Stables Access Road To Weston Resevoir Upper Weston Bath

-

Weston Reservoir
(covered)

Redstile
Cottage

Ward: Bathavon North Parish: Charlcombe LB Grade: N/A
Ward Members: Councillor M Veal Councillor Alison Millar Councillor Geoff Ward

Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Conversion of stables to 2no. bedroom single storey dwelling house
(Class C3) and associated works.
Constraints: Saltford Airfield 3km buffer, Agric Land Class 1,2,3a, Policy B4 WHS -

Indicative Extent, Policy CP8 Green Belt, Policy CP9 Affordable
Housing Zones, LLFA - Flood Risk Management, MOD Safeguarded
Areas, Policy NE1 Green Infrastructure Network, Policy NE2 AONB,
Policy NE2A Landscapes and the green set, Policy NE5 Ecological
Networks, Policy NE5 Strategic Nature Areas, SSSI - Impact Risk
Zones, Policy ST8 Safeguarded Airport & Aerodro,

Applicant: Mrs Amanda Ridings
Expiry Date: 31st August 2018
Case Officer: Rae Mepham

To view the case click on the link here.

REPORT
Reason application being referred to committee

Application referred to Chair following objection from Charlcombe Parish Council and
request from ClIr Veal. Chair recommended application be referred to committee:

| have studied this application carefully & all related information including comments from
Ward ClIr, statutory consultees & third party, all raising concerns.

The report has assessed the application in line with relevant planning policies & it is clear
the principle of development is recognised & Highways are happy with height of hedges to

Page 59



http://isharemaps.bathnes.gov.uk/data.aspx?requesttype=parsetemplate&template=DevelopmentControlApplication.tmplt&basepage=data.aspx&Filter=%5erefval%5e='18/01240/FUL'&SearchLayer=DCApplications

remain however the impact on the area remains controversial & for this reason |
recommend the application be determined by the DMC

Details of location and proposal

The application site is located to the west of Upper Weston, sited within the Cotswolds
AONB and Bristol/Bath Green Belt. This application is for the conversion and extension of
the existing stable building to facilitate the conversion to a 2no. bedroom dwellinghouse.
Relevant history

None.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
Consultation responses

Charlcombe Parish Council - Objection:

- Principle of conversion accepted

- Concern regarding additional shelter for livestock

- Detrimental impact to residential amenity

- Exposed development site

- Hay stores could be used to increase volume of dwelling

Highways - No objection subject to condition retaining parking
Wessex Water - No objection

Drainage and flooding - No objection subject to submission of detailed drainage
drawings

Ecology - No objection subject to conditions regarding protection of nesting birds and
bats and restricting external lighting

Landscape - No objection subject to conditions requiring the submission of hard and soft
landscaping scheme including a detailed specification of the wildflower meadow.

Third party representations
Three objection comments have been received, summarised as:

- Proposal would change character of area

- Improvements could be carried out without development
- Sympathetic materials

- Field shelters would require construction

- Conversion will be overlooked

- Crowded

- Proposed is within AONB

- Agricultural buildings should not be allowed to convert

- Further extensions could be erected

Page 60



- Planning document factually inaccurate and uses Planning Consultant spin
- Harm from noise

- Invasion of privacy

- Light pollution

Cllr call in
Request from ClIr Veal:

- Site overlooked

- Site within AONB

- Flooding problems

- Proposed structure not in-keeping with Cotswolds or immediate area

POLICIES/LEGISLATION

On 13th July 2017 the Council adopted the B&NES Placemaking Plan. It now becomes
part of the statutory Development Plan for the district, against which planning applications
are determined.

The statutory Development Plan for B&NES now comprises:

- Core Strategy (July 2014)

- Placemaking Plan (July 2017)

- B&NES Local Plan (2007) - only saved Policy GDS.1 relating to 4 part implemented sites
- Joint Waste Core Strategy

- Made Neighbourhood Plans

The following Core Strategy policies would be applicable:

CP5 - Flood risk management
CP8 - Green Belt
DW1 - District Wide Spatial Strategy

The following B&NES Placemaking Plan policies should be considered:

D1 - General Urban Design Principles

D2 - Local Character & Distinctiveness

D3 - Urban Fabric

D4 - Streets and Spaces

D5 - Building Design

D6 - Amenity

D8 - Lighting

D10 - Public Realm

GBL1 - Visual amenities of the Green Belt

H7 - Housing Accessibility

LCR9 - Increasing the Provision of Local Food Growing
NE2 - Conserving and enhancing the landscape character
NE3 - Sites, species and habitats

SCR5 - Water Efficiency

ST1 - Promoting sustainable travel

Page 61



ST7 - Transport requirements for managing development

Consideration has been given to the National Planning Policy Framework (Revised July
18) and the National Planning Practice Guidance.

OFFICER ASSESSMENT
Principle of development

Conversion of building

The proposal is located within the Green Belt, and as such Section 13 of the Revised
National Planning Policy Framework applies. Paragraphs 145 and 146 define
development that can be considered as appropriate within the Green Belt. The re-use of a
building, providing that the buildings are of a permanent and substantial construction, can
be considered as appropriate.

Policy REG6 in the Placemaking Plan allows for the re-use of rural buildings, providing the
conversion falls within certain parameters.

1. It's form, bulk and general design is in keeping with its surroundings and respects the
style and materials of the existing building

The existing building is mainly constructed from natural stone, with some blockwork
additions in places. The majority of the structure is to remain as existing, with some
replacement of blocks to match the existing stonework. Dark stained cedar cladding is to
be used sparingly in order to break up the facades of the building. The existing garage
building will be replaced with a natural stone and clad extension, and the roof will be
replaced with metal standing seam. The overall appearance will be more modern than the
building's current appearance, however still retains the character of the existing building
and is in keeping. A full set of material samples would be required by condition.

2. The building is not of temporary or insubstantial construction and not capable of
conversion without substantial or complete reconstruction or requires major extension

The building is of a solid stone construction, and in a good state of repair. The submitted
structural report confirms that although some repairs would need to be made, the building
is capable of being converted without substantial or complete reconstruction. Some
blockwork is to be replaced with natural stone and cladding, this is largely for cosmetic
reasons, and would still not be considered to be substantial. A replacement extension is to
be constructed on the east elevation; however this is not considered to be major. Further
consideration of the extension is provided below.

3. The proposal would enhance visual amenity and not harm ecological function (e.g.
bat roost)

The impact upon visual amenity and ecology is discussed further in the report.

4. The proposal does not result in the dispersal of activity which prejudices town or
village vitality and viability

Page 62



This is not applicable to this proposal.

5. Where the building is isolated from public services and community facilities and
unrelated to an established group of buildings the benefits of re-using a redundant or
disused building and any enhancement to its immediate setting outweighs the harm
arising from the isolated location

Although the proposal is not located within the urban area of Bath, the site is located
around 350m from the edge of Weston, and sited adjacent to a number of dwellinghouses.
The proposal therefore cannot be considered to be isolated.

6. The development would not result, or be likely to result, in replacement agricultural
buildings or the outside storage of plant and machinery which would be harmful to visual
amenity

The proposal site is being used for stables, which is not an agricultural use. This is
therefore not applicable to this proposal.

7. In the case of buildings in the Green Belt, does not have a materially greater impact
than the present use on the openness of the Green Belt or would conflict with the
purposes of including land within the Green Belt.

As considered above, the re-use of buildings providing that the buildings are of a
permanent and substantial construction can be considered as appropriate development. A
small extension will be constructed on the east elevation however this is not a
disproprtionate addition. The existing yard area is already hard surfaced, and a condition
will be applied for appropriate soft landscaping which will improve the impact upon
openness. Vehicles visiting the site are a common occurrence and the presence of
vehicles on site will have no further impact than the existing situation.

8. The integrity and significance of buildings and farmsteads of architectural and
historic interest and of communal, aesthetic and evidential value are safeguarded
consistent with Policy HEL.

The building is not a designated or un-designated heritage asset. Nevertheless, the
existing stonework is being retained as well as the replacement of unappealing blockwork,
ensuring the aesthetic value of the building is retained.

Extension of building

The proposal also incorporates an extension to the existing building. Part of the building,
identified as a "lean to shed" appears on historic maps and aeriel photographs going back
to 1960. The LPA has no information to suggest this structure was not in place from 1946,
and this must therefore be considered part of the original building.

Paragraph 145 of the Revised NPPF allows for "the extension or alteration of a building

provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the
original building.

Page 63



The original building is around 567m3, with the proposal measuring around 745m3. This is
an increase of around 31%. When viewed in context the extension is sited lower than the
existing building at both ridge and eaves level, and presents itself as a small subservient
extension. The extension is considered to be proportionate, and as such is appropriate
development within the Green Belt.

Isolated homes in the countryside

The proposal must also be considered against paragraph 79 of the NPPF, which prevents
new isolated homes in the countryside unless there are special circumstances. As
discussed under part 5 of policy REG6, the proposal is not considered to be isolated.

In summary, the principle of development is considered to be acceptable.
Landscape

The site is located approximately 250 metres from the western edge of Upper Weston and
forms part of a loose cluster of buildings with Redstile Gardens, Redstile Cottage, The
Bungalow Farm, The Kennels, Weston Reservoir Pumping Station and various other
agricultural and ancillary buildings.

The corrugated metal roofs, bare concrete block construction and the utilitarian wide
stable doors give the building a ramshackle/cobbled together appearance that is unsightly
but not untypical of edge of settlement privately owned equestrian facilities.

The site lies at approximately 90m AOD within the designated landscape setting of Bath,
The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), the World Heritage Site
Setting and the Green Belt. These designations underscore the importance of the
landscape and visual character and quality of the surrounding countryside.

The Cotswolds Way (PROW BA5/2) lies on higher ground to the south west of the site and
a number of other PROWSs run up the slopes around the head of the valley close to the
site location. The submitted Landscape and Visual Appraisal has taken a number of
representative photographs which show that the existing stable block is visible in some but
not all views and where visible it is either seen as part of the wider clustering of buildings
in this part of the valley or is glimpsed as "tucked down" amongst the undulating landform.
Where the buildings are not visible the immediately surrounding boundary vegetation as
well as the nature of the landform are important screening factors.

Given that the proposed conversion is single storey and occupies the existing footprint, |
consider that the proposed development is acceptable in the local landscape and that it
will be likely to have a neutral effect on the landscape character of the AONB, on the WHS
setting and on the landscape setting of Bath.

The submitted Landscape and Visual Appraisal makes similar conclusions overall. It
should be noted that the appraisal failed to assess effects on the landscape setting of
Bath and on the WHS Setting. | am confident that this would not have affected the
outcome but it should be noted as an omission. These additional designations serve to
emphasize the sensitivity of this landscape and the need for the highest quality
development design and implementation.

Page 64



The existing hedgerow will no longer be reduced to 90cm, and highways have agreed that
a retention of around 1.8m would be sufficient. The loss of stabling is noted, however the
applicant has stated that suitable accommodation could be found elsewhere if necessary.
Should any permanent structures be required they would require further planning
permission that would be assessed on its own merits. Subject to conditions requiring hard
and soft landscaping schemes, there are no landscape concerns in regards to this
proposal.

Highways

The site location has been revised in order to connect with the public highway on
Broadmoor Lane. A portion of private lane will need to be crossed to access the
development, and the applicant must ensure that all civil responsibilities regarding this
access are met.

Having considered the rural nature and geometry of Broadmoor Lane at this location,
Highways DC acknowledge that vehicles are more likely to travel in a more cautious
manner thus limiting the risk of conflicts at the site access. This accords with page 89 of
the Manual for Streets that identifies that carriageway width and forward visibility are the
two 'stand out' factors that influence driving speed. In order to alleviate the concerns
raised by the BANES Landscape Environment Team in relation to removal/trimming of the
hedgerow along the sites eastern boundary, Highways DC recommends that the
hedgerow be retained and maintained at a height of 1.8m. Given that the hedgerow being
higher than 1.8m will not further obscure visibility and a condition requiring the
maintenance of the hedge at a height of exactly 1.8m tall at all times is overly onerous and
unenforceable, the condition will require the hedge to be kept at a minimum of 1.8m tall.

There is no objection to the development as currently proposed providing the parking
areas are kept clear of obstruction.

Drainage

Drainage are satisfied with the proposed method of permeable paving for the car parking
and access area.

Drainage are comfortable with the principle of limiting discharge to 3.4l/s and connection
to the watercourse, it is believed that the proposed method of utilising an existing
connection to a highway manhole is not viable. The drainage team have recently visited
the site area and lifted this manhole. There appears to be no connection to the site, and
the manhole itself seems to be abandoned or in very poor condition. Highway gulleys do
not utilise this manhole/ pipework and this would not appear to connect onto the
watercourse.

The applicant should therefore consider this information carefully and undertake any
surveys or otherwise. We would suggest that installing an entirely new connection to the
watercourse would be a more viable approach.

Drawings and Micro Drainage models will need to be updated and we suggest a survey of
the receiving manhole/ chamber is undertaken and drawings showing the proposed

Page 65



method of connection to this system - one that will accommodate the new and existing
connections and consider any improvements that could be made as part of the works. To
note that this chamber also acts as a gully and is designed to capture water from the road
and get it into the culverted watercourse.

Normally this type of connection would require Land Drainage Consent form the Lead
Local Flood Authority therefore we would expect detailed drawings showing the
arrangement and method of works.

We note that the proposed 'option B' connection to the culverted watercourse runs across
third party land. Clearly the applicant will need to obtain permission to construct pipe
1.003 or present an alternative route of drainage.

Any works on the highway will need to be organised with the Council's Street Works team.
There may well be services within the road/ access track which will need to be factored
into design prior to submission. The proposed drainage scheme must be submitted prior
to the commencement of development.

Summary of drainage comments

There are concerns that the proposed drainage solution may not be able to be carried out,
however this requires further details of the existing and proposed drainage system. The
flooding and drainage team are content that the details can be submitted as a condition as
the details are unlikely to alter the proposal itself.

Residential amenity

The property is located near existing residential dwellings, most notably Redstile Gardens
which is located opposite the application site.

Having visited the property, the stable building is visible, and there would be some
intervisibility between the two. Redstile Gardens is also located on higher ground, so the
potential for overlooking is higher than on flat topography. However, the proposed building
is located around 40m away from Redstile Gardens, and although it will be visible from the
property, the conversion would cause limited harm from overlooking. The windows facing
the existing property are not extensive, and new or replacement windows are propsed to
be restricted by condition in order to prevent further lightspill from the building. It is
therefore not considered that the proposal would cause significant harm to overlooking.

Overall, the proposal is considered acceptable, and is recommended for approval for the
above reasons.

Increasing the provision of Local Food Growing

Policy LCR9 states that all residential development will be expected to incorporate
opportunities for informal food growing where possible. The proposal site benefits from
garden areas where future occupiers could grow food if they wished.

Water Efficiency

Page 66



All dwellings will be expected to meet the national optional Building Regulations
requirement for water efficiency of 110 litres per person per day.

Rainwater harvesting or other methods of capturing rainwater for use by the residents
(e.g. water butts) will be required for all residential development, where technically
feasible.

Conclusion

On balance, the proposals are considered to be acceptable, and the application is
recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
PERMIT

CONDITIONS

1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission

2 Materials - Submission of Schedule and Samples (Bespoke Trigger)

No construction of the external walls of the development shall commence until a schedule
of materials and finishes, and samples of the materials to be used in the construction of
the external surfaces, including roofs, have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out only in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the development and the surrounding area
in accordance with Policies D1, D2, D3 and D5 of the Bath and North East Somerset
Placemaking Plan and Policy CP6 of the Bath and North East Somerset Core Strategy.

3 Removal of Permitted Development Rights - No Windows (Compliance)
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification) no windows, roof lights or openings, other than those shown on the
plans hereby approved, shall be formed in the property at any time unless a further
planning permission has been granted.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining occupiers from overlooking and loss of
privacy in accordance with Policy D6, and to protect the rural character of the landscape in
accordance with Policy NE2 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

4 Hard and Soft Landscaping (Pre-occupation)

No occupation shall commence until a hard and soft landscape scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority showing details of all

Page 67



trees, hedgerows and other planting to be retained; finished ground levels; a planting
specification to include numbers, density, size, species and positions of all new trees and
shrubs, a detailed specification for wildflower meadow seeding including an establishment
management programmed for a 5 year period; details of existing and proposed walls,
fences, other boundary treatment and surface treatment of the open parts of the site, and
a programme of implementation. The submitted Whole Site landscape Masterplan &
Biodiversity and Enhancement Strategy to be implemented in full with the addition of the
planting of a new native hedgerow to include three hedgerow trees (oak, field maple are
suggested species) along the northern boundary of the application site (currently post and
wire).

Reason: To ensure the provision of an appropriate landscape setting to the development
in accordance with Policies NE2 and NE2A of the Bath and North East Somerset Local
Plan.

5 Hard and Soft Landscaping (Compliance)

All hard and/or soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with the programme (phasing) agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants indicated on the approved scheme which,
within a period of five years from the date of the development being completed, die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced during the next
planting season with other trees or plants of a species and size to be first approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The wildflower meadow to be assessed for
successful establishment in the second year and re-seeded where establishment has
resulted in less than 50% of herbaceous species in the original mix surviving. All hard
landscape works shall be permanently retained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the landscape scheme is implemented and maintained in
accordance with Policies NE2 and NE2Aof the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan.

6 Landscape Maintenance/Management (Compliance)

The existing boundary vegetation along the boundary to Broadmoor Lane and the lane to
Weston Reservoir shall be maintained at a mature height of 1.8m or higher to ensure
effective screening of the development. Should the existing boundary vegetation, within a
period of five years from the date of the development being completed, die, be removed or
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced during the next planting season
with other trees or plants of a species and size to be first approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the landscape scheme is implemented and maintained in
accordance with Policies NE2 and NE2Aof the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan.

7 Drainage Strategy (Pre-commencement)

No development shall commence, except ground investigations and remediation, until
detailed drawings showing the proposed connection of the site surface water drainage to
the culverted watercourse has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and installed prior to the occupation of the development. Proposed
designs should be accompanied with a new Micro Drainage model to be reviewed and
approved by the Lead Local Flood Authority.

Page 68



Reason: To ensure that an appropriate method of surface water drainage is installed and
in the interests of flood risk management in accordance with Policy CP5 of the Bath and
North East Somerset Core Strategy. This is a condition precedent because it is necessary
to understand that the proposed method of connection to the culverted watercourse is
viable prior to any initial construction works which may prejudice the surface water
drainage strategy.

8 Parking (Compliance)

The areas allocated for parking and turning on the submitted plan shall be kept clear of
obstruction and shall not be used other than for the parking of vehicles in connection with
the development hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure sufficient parking and turning areas are retained at all times in the
interests of amenity and highways safety in accordance with
Policy ST7 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

9 Protection of nesting birds and bats (Compliance)

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the
recommendations and ecological enhancement measures described on pages 12 and 13
of the approved Bat Survey Report (Stark Ecology, June 2017). No removal of ivy,
hedgerow or woody vegetation shall take place between 1st March and 31st August
unless a Survey to assess the nesting bird activity on the site during this period and a
Scheme to protect the nesting birds has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. No ivy, hedgerow or woody vegetation shall be removed
between 1st March and 31st August other than in accordance with the approved bird
nesting protection scheme.

Reason: To protect nesting birds and bats and prevent ecological harm in accordance with
NES3 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

10 External Lighting (Bespoke Trigger)

No new external shall be installed without full details of proposed lighting design being first
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; details to include
proposed lamp models and manufacturer's specifications, positions, numbers and heights;
and details of all necessary measures to limit use of lights when not required and to
prevent upward light spill and light spill onto trees and boundary vegetation and adjacent
land; and to avoid harm to bat activity and other wildlife. The lighting shall be installed
maintained and operated thereafter in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To avoid harm to bats and wildlife in accordance with policies NE3 and D8 of the
Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

11 Water Efficiency - Rainwater Harvesting (Pre-occupation)

No occupation of the approved dwellings shall commence until a scheme for rainwater
harvesting or other methods of capturing rainwater for use by residents (e.g. Water butts)
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall thereafter be

constructed in accordance with the approved details.

Page 69



Reason: In the interests of water efficiency in accordance with Policy SCR5 of the
Placemaking Plan.

12 Water Efficiency (Compliance)
The approved dwellings shall be constructed to meet the national optional Building
Regulations requirement for water efficiency of 110 litres per person per day.

Reason: In the interests of water efficiency in accordance with Policy SCR5 of the Bath
and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

13 Plans List (Compliance)
The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.
PLANS LIST:
This decision relates to:

08 Jun 2018 002 REVISION E PROPOSED PLAN AND ELEVATIONS
19 Mar 2018 002 FIGURE 7B PROPOSED LANDSCAPE LAYOUT PLAN

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

Condition Categories
The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is
required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.g.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens

Page 70



after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

Item No: 04

Application No:  18/02507/FUL

Site Location: 97 Sheridan Road Whiteway Bath Bath And North East Somerset
BA2 1RA

Ward: Twerton Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A
Ward Members:  Councillor Tim Ball Councillor Joe Rayment
Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling house (use class C3) to HMO (use class
C4)
Constraints: Article 4 HMO, Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative

Extent, Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Coal - Standing Advice Area,
Policy CP9 Affordable Housing Zones, MOD Safeguarded Areas,
Policy NE5 Ecological Networks, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Mrs Josephine Vercoe
Expiry Date: 2nd August 2018
Case Officer: Christine Moorfield

To view the case click on the link here.

REPORT
REASON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE:

Page 71



http://isharemaps.bathnes.gov.uk/data.aspx?requesttype=parsetemplate&template=DevelopmentControlApplication.tmplt&basepage=data.aspx&Filter=%5erefval%5e='18/02507/FUL'&SearchLayer=DCApplications

This application is presented to committee as the Chair of the Planning Committee has
noted the Ward Clirs comments that the adjacent applications should be debated at DMC.
There are numerous third party objection comments. The application has been assessed
against relevant planning policy which it does not contravene however it is considered that
the application should be debated in the public arena so that all views can be expressed
fully.

There is a retrospective application at 99 Sheridan Road for an HMO which is also on this
committee agenda for discussion.

This property is a terraced property within a street of similar two/three storey dwellings.
The site is located within the World Heritage Site and Article 4 HMO area.

The plans indicate that within the house the existing rooms will be subdivided to provide 6
lettable rooms with three bedroom on the top and first floor. The occupiers will share a
kitchen, dining/sitting room area at ground floor level.

HISTORY
There is no recent relevant Planning History on this property.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS

HIGHWAYS

| refer to the revised floor plans in respect of the above planning application received on
25th June 2018. The following are my comments:

It is now proposed to convert the existing 4 bed dwelling into a 6 bed HMO. Having
assessed the data collected during surveys carried out by Dept. for Communities and
Local Govt., it is likely that car-ownership would be similar to the current domestic use of
the property in this case and thus is unlikely to increase.

Based on this information, Highways DC have no objection to the proposed change of
use.

DRAINAGE
No objection. Proposal will have minimal impact on drainage and flood risk.

CLLR TIM BALL has commented as follows:

This application is the third in this area and there is less than 50 yards between this one
and one that has been granted permission at 78 Sheridan Road and next door to a
retrospective application at 99 Sheridan Road.

This application is against council policy on proximity of HMOs to each other and should
be refused planning permission.

Sheridan already has massive parking problems and this will only add to the matter.

22 letters of objection/comment have been received.

The main issues raised are as follows:

The use is out of character with the area which is a traditional, well established community
of family housing.

The proposal would result in disturbance to neighbours through noise and activity. There
has already been disturbance from building works as these have been undertaken in
advance of any permission being granted. New residents are likely to come and go at
different times to the families in the street.

Page 72



Elderly residents could suffer due to increased pressure for parking.

Traffic and parking issues. There is a parking problem in this area at present. Increased
traffic movements could be dangerous.

Increased traffic/need for parking could impact on access for emergency vehicles.

An HMO will be likely to generate more traffic and require more parking spaces than a
family house.

Approval of this application would set a precedent for other such HMOs in this area.

An HMO will result in the loss of a needed family house and there is already enough
student accommodation in Bath.

The plans as submitted do not tally with the works that are being carried out.

The change of use is contrary to policy.

There are 4 HMOs in the immediate vicinity of this site and an application for the adjacent
house is also being considered now.

POLICIES/LEGISLATION

On 13th July the Council adopted the B&NES Placemaking Plan. It now becomes part of
the statutory Development Plan for the district, against which planning applications are
determined.

The statutory Development Plan for B&NES now comprises:

- Core Strategy (July 2014)

- Placemaking Plan (July 2017)

- B&NES Local Plan (2007) - only saved Policy GDS.1 relating to 4 part implemented sites
- Joint Waste Core Strategy

- Made Neighbourhood Plans

The following B&NES Core Strategy policies should be considered:

CP6 - Environmental Quality

CP2 - Sustainable Construction

CP10 - Housing Mix

B4 - World Heritage Site

The following B&NES Placemaking Plan policies should be considered:

D1 - General urban design principles

D2 - Local character and distinctiveness

D3 - Urban Fabric

D4 - Streets and Spaces

D6 - Amenity

ST1 Promoting Sustainable Travel

ST7 Transport access and development management

HE1 Historic Environment

H2 House in Multiple Use

Supplementary Planning Document: Houses in Multiple Occupation in Bath SPD
(November 2017)

Consideration will be given to the National Planning Policy Framework and the National
Planning Practice Guidance.

OFFICER ASSESSMENT
Principle of development

This proposal is for the change of use from C3 to C4 which could ordinarily be
implemented under permitted development rights, however an Article 4 Direction has been

Page 73



adopted which applies to the whole City of Bath, and therefore planning permission is
required.

Placemaking Plan Policy H2 restricts the sub-division and conversion of existing dwellings
to Houses in Multiple Occupation in areas of high concentration of existing HMOs, where it
is incompatible with the character and amenity of existing adjacent uses and where the
HMO use would significantly harm the amenity of adjoining residents through a loss of
privacy, visual and noise intrusion. A supplementary planning document has been
adopted alongside policy H2 which seeks to prevent further changes of use to HMOs in
areas of high concentration. The SPD has two criteria for the assessment of such
applications:

Applications for the change of use from C3 dwellings to C4 or sui generis (Houses in
Multiple Occupancy) will not be permitted where:

Criterion 1

It would result in any residential property (C3 use) being 'sandwiched' between two HMOs.

According to the data held by the Council, the proposal would not result in a residential
property becoming sandwiched between two HMOs.

Criterion 1 aims to prevent the potential for negative impacts upon an existing dwelling
resulting from the sandwiching effect of an HMO use to both sides of a C3 dwelling. It also
aims to ensure that there is a balance of housing types at street level.

The SPD recognises that the cumulative impact of HMO's on either side could significantly
impact upon the residential amenity of the property as well as character of the area. C3
dwelling houses are occupied by single households which typically have co-ordinated
routines, lifestyles, visitors and comings and times and patterns of movement. Conversely,
HMOs are occupied by unrelated individuals, each possibly acting as a separate
household, with their own friends, lifestyles, and patterns and times of movements. The
comings and goings of the occupiers of a HMO are likely to be less regimented and occur
at earlier and later times in the day than a C3 family home, and may well consist of groups
engaging in evening or night time recreational activity. Such a change of use can therefore
be expected to increase comings and goings, noise and other disturbance compared to a
C3 use.

Individually, small HMOs are not generally considered to result in demonstrable harm to
residential amenity as it is only a concentration of HMOs that creates significant effect.
Given that the proposal will not result in sandwiching a C3 property, the proposal is
considered to be in compliance with Criterion 1.

Criterion 2

Stage 1 Test: The application property is within or less than 50 metres from a Census
Output Area in which HMO properties represent more than 10% of households; and Stage
2 Test: HMO properties represent more than 10% of households within a 100 metre radius
of the application property

This proposal falls outside a Census Output Area in which HMO properties represent
more than 10% of households.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not result in an over concentration of
HMOs contrary to supporting a balanced community.

Page 74



The proposal therefore complies with policy H2 of the Placemaking Plan and
supplementary policy set out in the Houses in Multiple Occupation in Bath (HMO) SPD.

Highways

Residents have raised concerns in respect of the impact this proposal will have on parking
and highway safety in this location. It is stated by residents that the parking is limited
within the area and this change of use will only serve to exacerbate the parking problems
in the area. The area is particularly busy in the evening when residents return home.
However, the Highway Engineer has confirmed that as surveys carried out by Dept. for
Communities and Local Govt. indicate that it is likely that car-ownership would be similar
to the current domestic use of the property and is unlikely to increase then Highways DC
raise no objection to the proposed change of use.

Residential amenity

The property is shown to potentially provide 6 rooms for occupation and as such any
permission is restricted to such a level of use as any occupation over six would require
planning permission to a 'large HMO"'.

Neighbours have raised concerns in respect of the impact that such a change of use will
have on this established community characterised by families and the elderly. There are a
few HMOs in the locality, however it should be noted that the house next door number 99
has been used as an HMO and at present a retrospective planning application is being
considered by the council.

Residents have objected to this proposal as they consider the occupation of an HMO s
different to that of a family house. They consider it likely that there will be more activity as
people come and go at different times from the adjacent residents. Due to the often
transient nature of the occupants the property and environment may not be respected and
kept to the same standard as the adjacent properties in the street.

It is recognised that HMOs are generally occupied by unrelated individuals who come and
go separately resulting in some additional activity in association with the property which is
different to the activities associated with a dwelling house (C3). However, HMOs within a
predominantly residential area characterised by C3 dwelling houses would not be
expected to result in a level of harm to the residential amenity of the neighbours that
would justify refusal of the application.

In addition, the proposed conversion would provide a reasonable living environment for
the proposed occupiers and adequate provision of facilities.

The proposal includes the insertion of an additional bathroom window in the rear elevation
of the property on the top floor. This window is seen to be acceptable and would not result
in any material change to the existing situation in terms of loss of privacy or overbearing
impact of the development to adjacent occupiers.

The proposal accords with policy D6 and H2 of the Placemaking Plan for Bath and North
East Somerset (2017), paragraph 17 and part 7 of the NPPF and the Houses of Multiple
Occupation SPD 2017.

Waste

Page 75



The proposed site has a front and rear garden area so it is not considered necessary or
justifiable for waste storage details to be specified in relation to this proposed change of
use.

Drainage- No objection to the proposal has been raised by the Councils Drainage
Engineer.

Accuracy of plans

As originally submitted the plans did not reflect the works that were being carried out on
the site in advance of any permission being granted. Following discussions between
officers and the applicant the description of the application was amended and accurate
plans submitted which indicate the works that have been carried out and the final layout
and alterations to this property.

Other matters

Comments in respect of precedent are not matters that are material to the considerations
of this application.

Residents have commented that there is enough student accommodation within the city.
However, this change of use to an HMO may not be occupied by students.

Concerns were raised by residents that disturbance was being caused by work being
carried out prior to any permission being granted. Should an applicant decide to carry out
work prior to any permission being granted then it is carried out entirely at their own risk.

Taking into account the above assessment it is recommended that the application is
granted permission.

RECOMMENDATION
PERMIT

CONDITIONS
1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years

from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission

2 Plans List (Compliance)

The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.

PLANS LIST:

Location plan 7/06/2018, Elevations and Floor Plans 25/06/2018.

Page 76



Condition Categories
The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is
required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.qg.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens
after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

Item No: 05

Application No:  18/02256/FUL

Site Location: 99 Sheridan Road Whiteway Bath Bath And North East Somerset
BA2 1RA

Page 77




Ward: Twerton Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A
Ward Members:  Councillor Tim Ball Councillor Joe Rayment
Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Change of use from a 4 bed dwelling house (Use Class C3) to a 4
bed House in Multiple Occupation (Use Class C4) (Retrospective)
Constraints: Article 4 HMO, Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative

Extent, Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Coal - Standing Advice Area,
Policy CP9 Affordable Housing Zones, MOD Safeguarded Areas,
Policy NE5 Ecological Networks, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Mr Dan McGauley
Expiry Date: 31st August 2018
Case Officer: Thomas Boyle

To view the case click on the link here.

REPORT

This retrospective application is presented to committee as the Chairman of the Planning
Committee has noted the Ward Cllrs comments that the adjacent applications should be
debated at DMC. The Chairman has noted the third party objection comments and stated
that the application has been assessed against relevant planning policy which it does not
contravene however it is considered that the application should be debated in the public
arena so that all views can be expressed fully.

This is an application at 99 Sheridan Road for the change of use of C3 dwellinghouse to
C4 HMO. There is a concurrent application for the same proposal at 97 Sheridan Road
which is also on this committee agenda for discussion.

This property is a terraced property within a street of similar two/three storey dwellings.

The site is located within the World Heritage Site and HMO Article 4 Direction area
restricting C3 to C4 permitted development rights.

Page 78



http://isharemaps.bathnes.gov.uk/data.aspx?requesttype=parsetemplate&template=DevelopmentControlApplication.tmplt&basepage=data.aspx&Filter=%5erefval%5e='18/02256/FUL'&SearchLayer=DCApplications

There are no external or internal works proposed as part of this application.

Relevant Planning History
There is no planning history relevant to this application

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS

Ward Member - Clir Tim Ball

Subject: Planning applications 97 & 99 Sheridan Road

"l note that you have two different officers working on these two planning applications for
conversion to 4 bed HMO's it would be helpful if these applications were looked at in
conjunction with one another.

It would also be helpful as these applications will have knock on effects to each other that
they were both dealt with at development control committee”.

Other Comments Received
4 Objections; 1 Representation. Summarised as follows:

Main issues:

- Already insufficient parking and an increase will lead to problems worsening

- Concerns that people already park on the pavements

- Increase in congestions causing potential issues for emergency vehicles

- Potential for increased noise

- Reduction in sense of community

- Concerns that HMOs become untidy properties

- Concerns regarding future over-population and request for restriction to 4no
occupants

- Request for permission to be specific to current owner and to cease on any future
sale of the property

POLICIES/LEGISLATION

On 13th July 2017 the Council adopted the B&NES Placemaking Plan. It now becomes
part of the statutory Development Plan for the district, against which planning applications
are determined.

The statutory Development Plan for B&NES now comprises:

- Core Strategy (July 2014)

- Placemaking Plan (July 2017)

- B&NES Local Plan (2007) - only saved Policy GDS.1 relating to 4 part implemented sites
- Joint Waste Core Strategy

- Made Neighbourhood Plans

The following B&NES Core Strategy policies should be considered:

CP6 - Environmental Quality
CP2 - Sustainable Construction

Page 79



CP10 - Housing Mix
B4 - World Heritage Site

The following B&NES Placemaking Plan policies should be considered:

D1 - General urban design principles

D2 - Local character and distinctiveness

D3 - Urban Fabric

D4 - Streets and Spaces

D6 - Amenity

ST1 - Promoting Sustainable Travel

ST7 - Transport access and development management
HEL1 - Historic Environment

H2 - House in Multiple Use

Supplementary Planning Document: Houses in Multiple Occupation in Bath SPD
(November 2017)

Consideration will be given to the Revised National Planning Policy Framework (2018)
and the National Planning Practice Guidance (2014).

OFFICER ASSESSMENT

99 Sheridan Road comprises a three storey end of terrace property forming part of a rank
of ten other similar properties. This application seeks permission for a change of use of
the property from a use within class C3 (dwellinghouse) to a use within class C4 (small
HMO) .The property has been in use as a HMO since ¢.2016 and this application is
therefore made retrospectively.

This application does not propose to make any changes to the exterior of the building and
there is no planning history for the property.

Normally an HMO for up to six people can be implemented under permitted development
rights; however a City wide Article 4 Direction was adopted in July 2013 preventing this
change without the need for planning permission. The property is located within the
boundary of the City and therefore the article 4 direction relating to HMO properties
applies.

A supplementary planning document has also been adopted by the Council which seeks
to prevent further changes of use to HMOs in areas of high concentration. The SPD has
two criteria for the assessment of such applications and applications for the change of use
from C3 dwellings to C4 or sui generis (Houses in Multiple Occupancy) will not be
permitted where:

Criterion 1:

It would result in any residential property (C3 use) being 'sandwiched' between two HMOs.

This proposal would not result in a residential property becoming sandwiched between
two HMOs.

Page 80



Criterion 2:

Stage 1 Test: The application property is within or less than 50 metres from a Census
Output Area in which HMO properties represent more than 10% of households; and

Stage 2 Test: HMO properties represent more than 10% of households within a 100 metre
radius of the application property.

99 Sheridan Road is more than 50 metres from a Census Output Area and therefore in
relation to Criterion 2, the Stage 1 test is passed and the Stage 2 test does not apply.

Notwithstanding the above assessment, in the interests of transparency and
completeness, whilst the property is located more than 50m from the Census Output Area
and there is no requirement to conduct the stage 2 test it is noted that there is a current
application for change of use from C3 to C4 pending for the adjacent property
(18/02507/FUL). In the event planning permission is granted for the adjacent property, this
will not change the outcome of the aforementioned tests.

There is therefore no in-principle objection to this change of use from C3 to C4.

Highways
In relation to the objections raised, they are mostly concerned with an increase in parking

and the perceived problems that this may cause to the local residents. The Councils
Highways Department has been consulted as part of this application and responded as
follows:

"The change of use is likely to increase the occupancy of the house marginally by
independent individuals (i.e. not a family) and this may raise concerns over increased
parking demand in the vicinity. However, the sites sustainable location is acknowledged
where there is good access to a range of services, facilities and public transport links and
car-use should therefore be less intense. It has also been noted that there is on-site
parking for 1 no. vehicle to the front of the dwelling if required.

Furthermore, there is also evidence from surveys carried out by Dept. for Communities
and Local Govt. which states that rented accommodation can have up to 0.5 fewer cars
than owner occupied households of similar size and type. Based on the existing room*
numbers and that proposed, car-ownership would be similar to or even less than the
current domestic use of the property in this case. Given this, coupled with the sites
sustainable location and off-street parking available, it is not considered that there would
be a significant impact on the local highway.

Based on the above, Highways DC have no grounds to object to this application. While
the demand for on-street parking in the immediate vicinity has been noted, there is no
policy attached to HMOs with regard to parking requirements. Furthermore, there has
been no residential car parking research undertaken for the city of Bath. In this instance,
national surveys undertaken by the Dept. for Communities and Local Govt. have been
referenced and have demonstrated that a proposal such as this will not have a severe
impact on car ownership (and thus onstreet parking)".

Page 81



Other representations made have voiced concern at the potential for increased noise and
the potential for the property to become untidy. Neither of these factors can be attributed
to a HMO any more than that of a private dwelling. Furthermore both of these issues can
be dealt with under statutory Environmental Protection legislation if deemed necessary.

Conclusion
Taking into account all matters relating to this application, the proposal is acceptable in
principle and therefore it is recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
PERMIT

CONDITIONS

1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission

2 Plans List (Compliance)
The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.
PLANS LIST:

This decision relates specifically to drawing numbers D161 02 - Existing and Proposed
Floor Plans and D161 01 Site and Location Plan received on 22nd May 2018.

Condition Categories
The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is
required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.g.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further

information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Page 82



Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens
after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

Community Infrastructure Levy

You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. Before commencing any
development on site you should ensure you are familiar with the CIL process. If the
development approved by this permission is CIL liable there are requirements to assume
liability and notify the Council before development commences, failure to comply with the
regulations can result in surcharges and additional payments. Full details about the CIL
Charge including, amount and process for payment will be sent out in a CIL Liability
Notice which you will receive shortly. Further details are available here:
www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

Item No: 06
Application No:  18/02432/FUL

Page 83




Site Location: 56 Brook Road Twerton Bath Bath And North East Somerset BA2

La[3)
— — 1]
’/ wms LS [
L] aich) | W 4 — e 7 A
Ward: Westmoreland Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A
Ward Members:  Councillor Colin Blackburn Councillor June Player
Application Type: Full Application
Proposal: Change of Use from 6no. bedroom house in multiple occupation (use
class C4) to 7no. bedroom house in multiple occupation (sui generis
use).
Constraints: Article 4 HMO, Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative

Extent, Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing
Zones, HMO Stage 1 Test Area (Stage 2 Test Req), LLFA - Flood
Risk Management, MOD Safeguarded Areas, Policy NE1 Green
Infrastructure Network, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Mr P Collins
Expiry Date: 1st August 2018
Case Officer: Dominic Battrick

To view the case click on the link here.

REPORT
REASON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE:

The application was referred to the Committee Chair in accordance with the Council's
Scheme of Delegation. ClIr June Player, ward councillor for Westmoreland, requested
that should officers be minded to recommend approval, consideration be given to
determination of the application by Development Management Committee. Planning policy
reasons were given by the ward councillor in objection to the application, contrary to
officer recommendation. The Chair has considered the application and decided that the
application will be determined by the Development Management Committee, commenting
as follows:

Page 84



http://isharemaps.bathnes.gov.uk/data.aspx?requesttype=parsetemplate&template=DevelopmentControlApplication.tmplt&basepage=data.aspx&Filter=%5erefval%5e='18/02432/FUL'&SearchLayer=DCApplications

"I have studied this application carefully & all related information including the third party
objections & Ward Clir DMC request.

The application has been assessed against relevant planning policy as the report explains
but | fully understand the concerns & possible implications raised by the change to sui
generis & feel the issues should be debated in the public arena as it is becoming more
common therefore | recommend this application be determined by the DMC."

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION:

56 Brook Road is a mid-terraced house in operation as a 6-bedroom house in multiple
occupation (HMO). While the application site is within the article 4 direction area
restricting the permitted change of use of C3 dwellings to C4 houses in multiple
occupation, Council data indicates that the HMO use of the property commenced prior to
adoption of the article 4 direction.

The site is within the City of Bath World Heritage Site but outside the Bath Conservation
Area.

The application is seeking to convert a ground floor sitting room to an additional bedroom,
resulting in the property providing a 7 bedroom HMO. As the C4 use class only includes
HMOs of 3 to 6 unrelated individuals residing at the property, the conversions would result
in the HMO representing a 'larger HMO' under sui generis use.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:
EN - 17/00438/UNDEV - CLOSED - 11 January 2018 - Enforcement Enquiry

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS:

Highway Development Officer - No objection:

"The change of use is likely to increase the occupancy of the house marginally by
independent individuals (i.e. not a family) and this may raise concerns over increased
parking demand in the vicinity particularly as on-street parking is uncontrolled and in very
high demand. However, the sites sustainable location is acknowledged where there is
good access to a range of services, facilities and public transport links and car-use should
therefore be less intense. It is noted that Oldfield Park Railway Station is only located
approx. 100m away.

Although there will be an increase in the number of bedrooms, surveys undertaken by
Dept. for Communities and Local Govt. suggest that car-ownership would not increase
relative to its current use based on room* numbers (which will remain the same as existing
with an existing sitting room being converted to a bedroom).

Given this, coupled with the sites sustainable location, it is not considered that there would
be a significant impact on the local highway.

While the demand for on-street parking in the immediate vicinity has been noted, an
objection on these grounds will not be sustainable for the reasons quoted above.
Furthermore, there are no parking standards for HMOs included in the policy document
and assumptions therefore cannot be made with regard to the number of additional
vehicles the change of use may generate. Highways DC, therefore, have no objection to
this application."

Page 85



OTHER REPRESENTATIONS / THIRD PARTIES

22 representations received from neighbours objecting to the application. The comments
raised are summarised as follows:

o] Principle of development: The application fails the Stage 1 and Stage 2 tests within
the 'Houses in Multiple Occupation in Bath® SPD and further changes of use are not
supported within an area of high concentration as defined by these tests. Lack of clarity
over the proposed use under sui generis. It is considered essential that the property
remains a HMO under licensing restrictions to restrict the number of occupants.

o] Parking and highway safety:

Increased demand for street parking in a street unable to cope with the demands of
residents due to a high concentration of HMOs and non-residents using the street for
parking for the nearby Oldfield Park Station. The inadequate street parking creates
problems for emergency vehicles. Assessment of street parking at this time outside of
academic term time when student accommodation will be vacant will not be indicative of
usual high levels of parking demand. Brook Road will be subject to other large new
housing developments in the vicinity affecting traffic and street parking, including the Bath
Press site. Students are preferred to families and couples occupying the rooms as they
are likely to require less parking.

o] Residential amenity:

Intensifying the use of an existing HMO in an area of high concentration of HMOs will
increase noise, disturbance and other harm to residential amenity. The use is associated
with students of a lifestyle incompatible with neighbouring family homes, including long
term residents at adjoining properties. 7 bedrooms inappropriate for a property of this size
originally containing 2 or 3 bedrooms. Additional rubbish in the street associated with
HMOs and student accommodation. Additional accumulation of waste, increasing the
strain on refuge and recycling storage and collection. Overdevelopment of what was
originally a 3-bedroom dwelling with poor communal facilities, which will provide
inadequate living conditions for occupiers. An application for the conversion to a large
HMO, which was refused and dismissed on appeal on the grounds of harm to living
conditions of neighbours, has been referred to - application 15/05125/FUL

o] Other issues:

The development would set a precedent for further C4 HMOs in the area to seek
expansion to become larger HMOs. The proposed change of use will not address the
shortage of family dwellings. Permission was never granted for the change of use from
C3 to C4 use. The property would no longer be subject to HMO controls, including limits
on occupancy; due to 7 double bedrooms the property could be occupied by 14 people or
more with families. Without HMO control the property could be used as an Airbnb holiday
accommodation. HMOs up for renewal should be refused. Development works were
undertaken prior to applying for planning permission. The works undertaken at basement
level raise concern of damage and subsidence to neighbouring properties. Increased
demand on sewerage. Students do not contribute to Council Tax.

The matters of objection raised in relation to the principle of the change of use, the parking
concerns, the impact on residential amenity and the resulting numbers of occupants were
all also supported by the ward councillor, Cllr June Player.

POLICIES/LEGISLATION

Page 86



POLICY CONTEXT:

The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the Council
on 10th July 2014. The Core Strategy now forms part of the statutory Development Plan
and will be given full weight in the determination of planning applications. The
Development Plan for Bath and North East Somerset comprises:

o] Bath & North East Somerset Core Strategy (July 2014)

o] Bath & North East Somerset Placemaking Plan (July 2017)

o] West of England Joint Waste Core Strategy (2011)

o] Bath & North East Somerset saved Local Plan policies (2007) not replaced by the
Core Strategy or the Placemaking Plan:

- Policy GDS.1 Site allocations and development requirements (policy framework)
- Policy GDS.1/K2: South West Keynsham (site)

- Policy GDS.1/NR2: Radstock Railway Land (site)

- Policy GDS.1/V3: Paulton Printing Factory (site)

- Policy GDS.1/V8: Former Radford Retail System's Site, Chew Stoke (site)

o] Made Neighbourhood Plans

Core Strategy:

The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the Council
on 10th July 2014. The following policies of the Core Strategy are relevant to the
determination of this application:

DW1.: District Wide Spatial Strategy

B1: Bath Spatial Strategy

B4: The World Heritage Site and its Setting
CP6: Environmental Quality

Placemaking Plan:

The Placemaking Plan for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the
Council on 13th July 2017. The following policies of the Placemaking Plan are relevant to
the determination of this application:

D1: General Urban Design Principles

D2: Local Character and Distinctiveness

D5: Building Design

D6: Amenity

HEZ1: Historic Environment

ST7: Transport requirements for managing development

NPPF:
The adopted National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was revised in July 2018 and is
a material consideration due significant weight. The following sections of the NPPF are of

particular relevance:

Section 2: Achieving Sustainable Development

Page 87



Section 9: Promoting Sustainable Transport
Section 12: Achieving well-designed places
Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Due consideration has also been given to the provisions of the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG).

SPDs

The following supplementary planning documents are also relevant in the determination of
this application:

The City of Bath World Heritage Site Setting Supplementary Planning Document (August
2013)

The Bath City-wide Character Appraisal (August 2005)

The Houses in Multiple Occupation in Bath Supplementary Planning Document
(November 2017)

OFFICER ASSESSMENT
PLANNING ISSUES:

The main issues to consider are:

- Principle of Development

- Parking and highway safety
- Residential amenity

- Character and appearance
- Other matters

OFFICER'S ASSESSMENT:
The principle of development:

56 Brook Road is currently in operation as a 6-bedroom house in multiple occupation.
The Use Classes Order classifies HMOs with 3 to 6 unrelated occupants as C4 use.
Dwellings with a greater number of unrelated occupants do not have a use class and are
therefore sui generis use, meaning the change of use to this use will require planning
permission.

The application is seeking to provide an additional bedroom, converting a communal living
room on the ground floor, to provide a total of 7 bedrooms. This would result in a total
number of unrelated occupants in excess of the 6 occupants and therefore beyond the C4
use class.

Bath's article 4 direction for HMOs restricts the change of use of C3 properties (i.e. family
dwellings) to C4 HMOs, which are normally permitted under the Use Classes Order.
Council records indicate that the property has commenced operation under C4 use prior to
the adoption of the article 4 direction in July 2013.

Page 88



The Council has adopted the 'Houses in Multiple Occupation in Bath' Supplementary
Planning Document, updated in November 2017, which supports policy H2 of the B&NES
Placemaking Plan. The SPD provides tests to assess over-concentration of HMOs within
Bath's article 4 direction area, and other harmful impacts resulting from the change of use
of a C3 family dwelling to a HMO. The policy and SPD are in place to support the
assessment of planning applications for this change of use from C3 to C4 use, required by
virtue of the article 4 direction. This is in order to control against the proliferation of further
C4 properties with the loss of C3 properties, and the associated harmful impacts of this
imbalance associated with high concentrations of HMOs.

However, the proposed development relates to an existing lawful HMO, recognised as C4
use, which proposes to convert a sitting room to an additional bedroom. This would result
in its use class falling within the sui generis classification. The SPD and policy H2
therefore do not apply to this proposal.

As initially submitted and registered, the description was unclear as to what the sui
generis use would consist of, with concerns raised that, without the licensing controls of
HMO use, the property could be occupied by an uncontrolled number of residents in each
room, consisting of couples or even families. This was clarified with the applicant and the
description was amended to clearly indicate that the proposed development is for a 7
bedroom HMO. The property would still be bound by HMO licensing restrictions, which
are not affected by whether the HMO falls within the C4 use class or sui generis use in
planning terms. Any other material change of use that falls within the sui generis category
would not be permitted by this application.

The Council's Development Plan does not include any policies for the assessment of
development for expanding existing HMOs beyond the scope of the C4 use class. Given
that the proposed use would be functionally the same use as the existing use, albeit more
intensified, there are no policy grounds to refuse the application in principle.

However, the application must be assessed against the material planning considerations
outlined below.

Parking and highway safety:

Considerable local objection has been raised over the impact of the development on the
demand for street parking in Brook Road. Brook Road is subject to heavy demand for
parking, due to a lack of off-street parking, the high levels of occupancy in the street (due
to the concentration of HMOs) and the proximity to Oldfield Park Station.

The Highways Officer was consulted, who acknowledges that street parking is
uncontrolled and in very high demand. However, it is concluded that Highways objection
is unsustainable on the grounds of insufficient parking. This is due to the sustainable
location of the site, with good access to a range of services, facilities and public transport
links. Although there will be an increase in the number of bedrooms, national statistics
referred to by the Highways Officer indicate that car ownership at the property will not
increase based on room numbers. Without adopted parking standards on HMOs, it is
considered difficult to demonstrate that a single additional bedroom at the HMO will result
in an unacceptable increased demand for parking, or a demonstrable harmful impact on
local highway conditions.

Page 89



Paragraph 109 of the revised NPPF states that development should only be prevented or
refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. Refusal
of the application on these grounds would be considered contrary to this policy.

The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with policies ST1 and ST7 of the
B&NES Placemaking Plan and Section 9 of the NPPF.

Residential amenity:

Representations received outline concerns to residential amenity resulting from
intensification of the HMO use, as well as general issues to amenity caused by HMO
properties.

Harmful impacts include noise and disturbance from the premises due to high level of
occupancy and student occupiers with lifestyles incompatible with elderly and family
neighbours. Other impacts associated with this use include rubbish in the highway, poorly
maintained gardens and increased demand on waste and recycling storage provision.
These are impacts that are mostly pronounced in areas of high concentration.

Within the context of this application, it must be noted that the property is in existing
operation as a 6 bedroom HMO. The proposed development will increase the number of
bedrooms by 1. Given the use will remain the same, it is considered that an additional
occupant will not result in demonstrable harm to the amenities of neighbouring properties
or the wider street.

Amenity of occupants has been raised also. While it would be preferable for the ground
floor sitting room to remain in communal use, its conversion to a bedroom will not result in
unacceptable standards of amenity for occupiers of the property. The lower ground floor
will provide a suitably sized communal area for a HMO of this size, with natural light
afforded from the rear elevation due to the variation in natural ground levels. Occupiers
would also have access to the rear garden. The additional bedroom will not result in a
significant increased demand for refuse and recycling storage, and the house has
sufficient space for waste storage. Overall, in planning terms the amenities of the
development are acceptable for the proposed use on this scale.

A representation made reference to a refused planning application that was dismissed at
appeal, for the conversion of a C2 care home to a larger HMO within the city of Bath,
under application 15/05125/FUL. The application was refused and dismissed on the
grounds of residential amenity. The site is within an established residential area and
operated for 20 elderly residents in addition to up to 8 members of staff. The proposed
HMO was for 18 bedroom units. Having considered this example, the case is considered
to have very different circumstances, due to the considerably larger scale of the proposed
HMO. The impacts on neighbouring properties would be expected to be much more
pronounced than with a 7 bedroom HMO. Furthermore, the refused application
represents a much more significant change in use from its existing C2 use than the
proposed additional bedroom at 56 Brook Road. The example therefore carries very
limited relevance to this application.

Page 90



It is noted that the submitted design and access statement argues that the change of use
will reduce the number of C4 properties in the area, thereby providing a benefit to the
community. This is considered to be erroneous as the resulting property will operate in a
functionally identical capacity to the existing use, but with a marginal intensification in
occupancy. There will be no material benefits to the community, in terms of residential
amenity or other perceivable impacts. However, due to the small incremental increase in
the number of bedrooms, it is considered that the development will not result in
demonstrable harm. On this basis, the proposal is considered to comply with policy D6.

Character and appearance:

Policy D1, D2, D3 and D5 of the Placemaking Plan require proposals to have regard to the
character and appearance of the development and its impact on the character and
appearance of the host dwelling and wider area. Development proposals will be
supported, if amongst other things they contribute positively to and do not harm local
character and distinctiveness. Development will only be supported where, amongst other
things, it responds to the local context in terms of appearance, materials, siting, spacing
and layout and the appearance of extensions respect and complement their host building.

No external alterations are proposed for this development. Recent works to expand the
basement have been noted; however, following an enforcement investigation into the
building operations, it was concluded that no planning breach had occured. The current
application is for the conversion of an existing ground floor room to an additional bedroom
and the impact on increasing the occupancy of the HMO. The proposal will not materially
impact the appearance and character of the building or harm the setting of its
surroundings.

The proposed development is located within the Bath World Heritage Site, where policy
B4 of the Core Strategy states that consideration must be given to impacts on the heritage
asset and its setting. The development will not adversely impact the setting of the
surrounding area and will not result in harm to the Outstanding Universal Value of the
World Heritage Site, its authenticity or integrity.

Other matters:

Concern has been raised that approval of this application would set a precedent for similar
proposals to follow for existing HMOs in the area. Every application is assessed on its
own merits and based on the circumstances at the time. However, as explained above,
there are no policy grounds at present to restrict the development in principle. Any
subsequent applications will be assessed against the impact on residential amenity and
parking, in line with current policy.

While it is acknowledged the development will not address an imbalance in housing mix
and a current over-saturation of HMOs in the area, the proposal will not result in a loss of
family housing or otherwise exacerbate this issue, given that the premises is already
operating lawfully as a HMO.

The lack of planning history for a change of use from a C3 family dwelling to a C4 house

in multiple occupation is indicative that the current use of the HMO predates the July 2013
adoption of the article 4 direction in Bath restricting this change of use. Council data on

Page 91



HMO licensing supports this and there is no evidence to the contrary that the property is
not in lawful use as a HMO.

While the property would no longer constitute C4 use within the Use Classes Order, which
specifically relates to HMOs containing 3 to 6 unrelated individuals, the premises resulting
from the development would still operate as a HMO and would be subject to the same
licensing restrictions, including its restrictions on occupants. The property would remain
recognised as a HMO under the Council's GIS data. Therefore, the development will not
distort Council data when assessing proposals for new HMOs within the area. The
concerns that the property would be taken 'off radar' and no longer subject to HMO
controls are therefore unfounded.

It has been suggested that HMOs up for renewal should be refused in areas of high
concentration. This relates to renewal of HMO licensing. The continued operation of the
premises as a HMO when already lawfully operating as such is not development in
planning terms. It is not within the capacity of the planning system to restrict a continued
lawful use.

Comments have been raised on the physical works already undertaken prior to the
application to expand the accommodation at basement (lower ground floor) level. This
would not constitute development requiring planning permission. While the concerns of
physical impact to adjoining properties are noted, this is a matter of building regulations.
Matters of foul drainage are also dealt with under building regulations. Council data
indicates that this work was signed off by Building Control.

Council tax implications of the HMO accommodation being occupied by students is not a
material planning consideration.

CONCLUSION:

As the property already operates lawfully as a HMO, the article 4 direction restricting C3 to
C4 use, and local policy H2 of the Placemaking Plan, and the supplementary planning
document on HMOs are not applicable to this application.

There are no policies restricting the proposed development in principle, which would result
in the property continuing to operate as a HMO. The restrictions of the C4 use class
relate to permitted development only (whereby such rights in this location have been
removed by virtue of the article 4 direction). The proposal can therefore only be assessed
against the material impacts resulting from intensification of the use.

As the development will increase the number of bedrooms from 6 to 7, the degree of
intensification is considered to be marginal. Having considered the comments raised, it is
concluded that the development will not result in demonstrable harm to residential amenity
or highway conditions and parking, over and above the existing premises.

The proposed development is therefore considered to be in accordance with relevant

design and highways policies and is recommended for approval, subject to a compliance
condition restricting occupancy.

RECOMMENDATION

Page 92



PERMIT
CONDITIONS

1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission

2 Occupancy (Compliance)
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied by more than seven unrelated
occupants unless a further planning permission has been granted.

Reason: An increase in the number of occupants would need further consideration by the
Local Planning Authority with regard to residential amenity, parking and highway safety, in
accordance with policies D6 and ST7 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking
Plan.

3 Plans List (Compliance)
The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with
the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.
PLANS LIST:
This decision relates to the following plans:

Site Plan - 001, Layout Plan - 002, Existing Plans - 003, Proposed Plans - 004, Design
and Access Statement, all received 4 June 2018.

Condition Categories
The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is
required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions
do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further
information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development.
The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.qg.
ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further

information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved
development.

Page 93



Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission
and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide
only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit a conditions
application and pay the relevant fee, details of the fee can be found on the "what happens
after permission” pages of the Council's Website. You can submit your conditions
application via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or send it direct to
planning_registration@bathnes.gov.uk. Alternatively this can be sent by post to The
Planning Registration Team, Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BAl
1JG.

Community Infrastructure Levy

You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. Before commencing any
development on site you should ensure you are familiar with the CIL process. If the
development approved by this permission is CIL liable there are requirements to assume
liability and notify the Council before development commences, failure to comply with the
regulations can result in surcharges and additional payments. Full details about the CIL
Charge including, amount and process for payment will be sent out in a CIL Liability
Notice which you will receive shortly. Further details are available here:
www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil

HMO Licensing

Please note that you may also require a HMO Licence for your property to operate as an
HMO. Planning and HMO licensing are two separate requirements and it is essential that
an HMO licence is obtained, if applicable, after receiving planning permission. Although
Planning Permission may be granted without an HMO licence, you may legally not be able
to use the property as an HMO. If you have any queries, please contact Housing Services
by email at hmo_licensing@bathnes.gov.uk or telephone 01225 396269.

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

Item No: 07

Application No:  18/01994/FUL

Site Location: Rose Cottage Church Lane Chew Stoke Bristol Bath And North East
Somerset

Page 94




Church 0 Orchard End Brock House \) %

Bl R

Vs Proudence v

2 .

=N\ s
' e
o

Blue sky House]

= AR | e

Ward: Chew Valley North Parish: Chew Stoke LB Grade: N/A
Ward Members:  Councillor Liz Richardson

Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Erection of a rear two storey extension.

Constraints: Bristol Airport Safeguarding, Agric Land Class 1,2,3a, Conservation
Area, Conservation Area, Policy CP8 Green Belt, Policy CP9
Affordable Housing Zones, Greenbelt, Housing Development
Boundary, LLFA - Flood Risk Management, Policy NE1 Green
Infrastructure Network, Policy NE3 SNCI, Policy NE5 Ecological
Networks, Policy NE5 Strategic Nature Areas, Neighbourhood Plan,
SSSI - Impact Risk Zones, Policy ST8 Safeguarded Airport &

Aerodro,
Applicant: Mrs Deborah Phillips
Expiry Date: 31st August 2018
Case Officer: Dominic Battrick

To view the case click on the link here.

REPORT
REASON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE:

The application was referred to the Committee Chair in accordance with the Council's
Scheme of Delegation. Clir Liz Richardson, ward councillor for Chew Valley North,
requested that should officers be minded to recommend refusal, consideration be given to
determination of the application by Development Management Committee. Planning policy
reasons were given by both the ward councillor and Chew Stoke Parish Council in support
of the application, contrary to officer recommendation. The Chair has considered the
application and decided that the application will be determined by the Development
Management Committee, commenting as follows:

Page 95



http://isharemaps.bathnes.gov.uk/data.aspx?requesttype=parsetemplate&template=DevelopmentControlApplication.tmplt&basepage=data.aspx&Filter=%5erefval%5e='18/01994/FUL'&SearchLayer=DCApplications

"I have looked at the application & associated documents including photos, | note the
support from the CSPC & Ward ClIr, who has also requested the application be referred to
the DMC.

The application has been assessed against relevant planning policies & the %age
increase of this property in the Greenbelt is clearly stated & above the 33% guidance,
however the dwelling is small & even with this proposal the dwelling would become a
small 2 bed property which the PC feel are lacking in the village.

| am also aware the appearance & impact of the proposal in the Conservation Area has
clearly led to different opinions between the CSPC & Officer.

| therefore recommend this application be determined by the DMC so debate on the
controversial points can be held in the public arena.”

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION:

Rose Cottage is a detached two storey, 1-bedroom dwelling within the village of Chew
Stoke. The site falls within the Chew Stoke Conservation Area and Housing Development
Boundary. The site is also within the Bath and Bristol Green Belt.

The application is for a two storey and single storey rear extension. Due to the sideways
orientation of the dwelling relative to the highway, the north side of the house and the
extension adjoins the road of Church Lane.

The current application relates to a previous application refused in 2011 under reference
number 11/05053/FUL (and associated application for conservation area consent,
11/05054/CA). The application included the two storey rear extension currently proposed,
in addition to a garden room on the south side elevation which has been omitted from the
current scheme. The application was refused on the grounds that it was contrary to Green
Belt policy as a disproportionate addition to the original dwelling.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

DC - 11/05053/FUL - RF - 23 February 2012 - Erection of a two storey extension and
garden room.
DC - 11/05054/CA - APPRET - - Erection of a two storey extension and garden room.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS:

Chew Stoke Parish Council - support:

"The Parish Council would not normally support an application where the volume increase
of the proposed development exceeds 35% of the original built property. The parish
council considers that adhering to the 35% limit helps to maintain the openness of the
green belt within the village. The subject application property is a very compact sized one
bedroomed property. The proposed development, although exceeding the 35%
recommended limit, is considered to be modest and well proportioned in relation to the
existing dwelling with the ridge height of the extension being lower than the existing
dwelling and the flank wall of the extension on Church Lane being slightly set back from
the current flank wall. The parish council does not consider that the proposed
development would unduly affect the openness of the green belt or detract from the
current street scene. The combined development would provide more extensive and

Page 96



flexible accommodation which would better meet the needs of the existing residents and
provide the size of dwelling that is currently lacking in the village that would well serve the
needs and budgets of first time buyers, single person households or downsizers."

OTHER REPRESENTATIONS / THIRD PARTIES:
No third party representations received.
ClIr Liz Richardson (ward councillor for Chew Valley North):

"Rose Cottage is an extremely compact dwelling, currently only 1 bedroomed and less
than 47m2 of floor area. If it were applied for at that size

today it would not meet the requirement of the national housing standard for minimum
internal floor area (58m for 2 people sharing a 2 1bed

2storey property).

The young applicants wish to stay in the village but need extra space now to
accommodate a family, it is their preference to stay put and extend

rather than to move house (and indeed with property prices as they are, and so few small
size properties in the village they would find it

challenging to find a suitable alternative property).

Clearly the proposed extension is greater than the "normally accepetable” third, however,
certainly committee have on some occasions been

minded to permit some extensions outside the SPD guidance of a third if they felt there
was a compelling reason. In this case the extension

would bring the floor area up to an acceptable minimum size for a small family, at 77m2 it
would be meet the minimum standard for 3 persons

(nearly 4).

Such a small well designed unobtrusive additional dwelling area at the rear of this property
and within the housing development boundary

would be hard pressed to create a negative impact, at 77mz2 this would still be a very
modest property and the total of the proposed extended

area is only 20m2!"

POLICIES/LEGISLATION
POLICY CONTEXT:

The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the Council
on 10th July 2014. The Core Strategy now forms part of the statutory Development Plan
and will be given full weight in the determination of planning applications. The
Development Plan for Bath and North East Somerset comprises:

Bath & North East Somerset Core Strategy (July 2014)
Bath & North East Somerset Placemaking Plan (July 2017)
West of England Joint Waste Core Strategy (2011)
Bath & North East Somerset saved Local Plan policies (2007) not replaced by the
ore Strategy or the Placemaking Plan:
Policy GDS.1 Site allocations and development requirements (policy framework)
- Policy GDS.1/K2: South West Keynsham (site)
- Policy GDS.1/NR2: Radstock Railway Land (site)
- Policy GDS.1/V3: Paulton Printing Factory (site)

" Do o0oo

Page 97



- Policy GDS.1/V8: Former Radford Retail System's Site, Chew Stoke (site)
o] Made Neighbourhood Plans

Core Strategy:

The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the Council
on 10th July 2014. The following policies of the Core Strategy are relevant to the
determination of this application:

DW1.: District Wide Spatial Strategy
CP6: Environmental Quality
CP8: Green Belt

Placemaking Plan:

The Placemaking Plan for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the
Council on 13th July 2017. The following policies of the Placemaking Plan are relevant to
the determination of this application:

D1: General Urban Design Principles

D2: Local Character and Distinctiveness

D3: Urban Fabric

D5: Building Design

D6: Amenity

GB1: Visual Amenities of the Green Belt

GB3: Extensions and alterations to buildings in the Green Belt.
HEZ1: Historic Environment

ST7: Transport requirements for managing development

Neighbourhood Plan:

Chew Valley:

The Chew Valley Neighbourhood Plan was 'made’ in November 2016. The plan contains
policies

on housing development and environment; business and facilities; and aspiration policies.
The following policies are relevant to this application:

Policy HDE2 - Settlement Build Character
NPPF:

The adopted National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was revised in July 2018 and is
a material consideration due significant weight. The following sections of the NPPF are of
particular relevance:

Section 9: Promoting Sustainable Transport

Section 12: Achieving well-designed places

Section 13: Protecting Green Belt land

Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Page 98



Due consideration has also been given to the provisions of the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG).

Conservation Areas

In addition, there is a duty placed on the Council under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act to pay special attention to the preservation or
enhancement of the character of the surrounding Conservation Area.

Listed Buildings

In addition, there is a duty placed on the Council under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 'In considering whether to grant planning
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting' to 'have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses.’

SPDs

The following supplementary planning documents are also relevant in the determination of
this application:

Existing Dwellings in the Green Belt Supplementary Planning Document (October 2008)

OFFICER ASSESSMENT
PLANNING ISSUES:

The main issues to consider are:

o] Whether the proposal is appropriate development within the Green Belt.

o] The design impacts on the character and appearance of the site and its
surroundings, including Chew Stoke Conservation Area.

o] The impacts on the residential amenity of surrounding properties.

o] Highway safety and parking.
OFFICER'S ASSESSMENT:
Development in Green Belt:

The site is within the Green Belt, where paragraph 145 of the NPPF states that proposals
for extensions and alterations to existing buildings are not considered inappropriate in
principle provided that the development does not result in a disproportionate addition over
and above the size of the original building.

Local policy defines the assessment of a disproportionate addition in the context of
existing dwellings as one resulting in an increase in volume in excess of roughly a third of
the original building, including associated outbuildings such as garages. This is outlined
further in the Existing Dwellings in the Green Belt Supplementary Planning Document
(October 2008), which supports policy GB3 of the Placemaking Plan.

Page 99



The proposed extension is a two storey hipped roof extension on the rear elevation,
adjoining the highway due to the sideways orientation of the dwelling, with an adjoining
single storey lean-to section. The proposal represents a resubmission of this scheme
following a previous application, 11/05053/FUL, which also included a garden room
extension on the side elevation of the original dwelling. It was calculated that the
proposed development would have resulted in approximately a 74% increase in volume
compared to the volume of the original dwelling. This represented a disproportionate
addition to the building as defined within the supplementary planning document and
adopted policy at the time, and the application was refused on this basis.

While the adopted SPD has not been updated since the previous application, there has
since been a substantial change in local and national planning policy, with the adoption of
the National Planning Policy Framework and the B&NES Core Strategy and Placemaking
Plan.

The current application has omitted the garden room from the scheme, reducing the
increase in volume. Calculations submitted by the applicant's agent indicate a 42.64%
increase in volume, representing over a third of the volume of the original (and existing)
dwelling. Officer's calculations reach a figure of 46.3%. The figures submitted suggest
that the calculations are based on internal volumes, and not the overall external
measurements as required, resulting in this discrepancy. Regardless, the proposal
remains a disproportionate addition based on the volume of the extensions exceeding a
third of the volume of the original dwelling.

The NPPF is clear under paragraphs 143 and 144 that inappropriate development
(including disproportionate additions to existing buildings) is, by definition, harmful to the
Green belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. Such
circumstances will not exist unless the harm to the Green Belt is clearly outweighed by
other considerations.

Arguments for exceptional circumstances have been put forward by the applicant's agent,
and have been supported by the parish council and the ward councillor.

The primary argument relates to the constraints of the existing dwelling. A case is made
that the dwelling is cramped and with a dysfunctional layout. It is argued that the
extensions and alterations would allow the resulting development to better meet the
national minimum space standards. The B&NES Development Plan does not include any
policies that adopt the space standards. Furthermore, the space standards are designed
for new build dwellings and not extensions to existing dwellings. The compliance or non-
compliance with the standards therefore carries little policy weight under adopted local
policy. The suitability of the existing building to provide a self-contained dwelling would
have been assessed when the building was originally converted to a dwelling. This is
therefore not a planning consideration outweighing harm to the Green Belt.

It is also argued that it would be unaffordable for the residents, as a growing family, to

relocate in the village. This is a matter of private interest and therefore carries little
material weight when balanced against harm to the Green Belt.

Page 100



The application claims that the development will not have a negative impact as it will result
in a dwelling of a similar size to surrounding properties. Whilst located on the rear
elevation, the dwelling is orientated sideways to the highway, and the side of the
extension will almost double the depth of the dwelling, adding substantial bulk to the rear
of the dwelling when viewed from the highway. The officers disagree with the PC and
ward councillor comments that the extension will not be intrusive and will not harm the
openness of the Green Belt. The extension will be visually prominent by virtue of its siting
within the street scene, its scale relative to the original building, and its relative isolation
from surrounding buildings.

The agent makes reference to an application (17/02709/FUL) within Chew Magna that
was refused on the grounds of representing a disproportionate increase in terms of
volume. The application was allowed at appeal. While it is acknowledged that an
extension that is disproportionate in volume (based on B&NES adopted policy) may be
acceptable under very special circumstances, the circumstances of the example bear little
resemblance to this application. The stated example is for a two storey rear extension
located away from prominent views and sandwiched between properties within a more
densely developed residential street. It was concluded that the proposal would not harm
openness of the Green Belt or the rural character of the area. This contrasts with the
current proposal at Rose Cottage, which is considered to be both disproportionate in
volume and harmful to the openness and rural character of the Green Belt.

The proposal therefore represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt in
principle, and very special circumstances have not been presented that outweigh the harm
to the Green Belt. The proposed development is considered to harm the openness and
visual amenities of the Green Belt. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies GB1 and
GB3 of the Placemaking Plan, Policy CP8 of the Core Strategy and Section 13 of the
NPPF.

Character and Appearance:

Policy D1, D2, D3 and D5 of the Placemaking Plan require proposals to have regard to the
character and appearance of the development and its impact on the character and
appearance of the host dwelling and wider area. Development proposals will be
supported, if amongst other things they contribute positively to and do not harm local
character and distinctiveness. Development will only be supported where, amongst other
things, it responds to the local context in terms of appearance, materials, siting, spacing
and layout and the appearance of extensions respect and complement their host building.
Policy HE1 requires development that has an impact upon a heritage asset, whether
designated or non-designated, will be expected to enhance or better reveal its significance
and setting.

The site is within the Chew Valley Conservation Area. The street is characterised by its
rubble stone and boundary walls, rural cottages constructed in rubble stone and pantile
roofs, and the dense coverage of mature trees surrounding the highway. The application
site is in close proximity to the Grade II* listed The Rectory, and is on the approach to the
Grade II* listed Church of St Andrew. While the existing dwelling is small relative to many
of the surrounding properties, the side elevation directly adjoins the highway and is
therefore prominent in views along Church Lane from the east and west.

Page 101



No objection to appearance of the development and its impact on the character of the host
building and the surrounding heritage assets were raised when the previous application
was assessed. However, as the previous application predated current national and local
policy, it is considered necessary to reassess these impacts.

The host building has the appearance of a modest sized cottage, with its siting and form
suggesting its origins as a coach house or similar ancillary outbuilding. The proposed
extension represents a significant addition to the building in terms of footprint and layout,
dominating the host building in views from the east.

While the proposed external materials are sympathetic to the host building, the scale, form
and massing of the extension will harm the simple historic character of the building. The
additional bulk, particularly when viewed from Church Lane, will provide a stark and
imposing two storey structure harmful to the rural character of the street scene. The
extension will also be harmful to the character of the conservation area.

The proposal is therefore considered contrary to policies D1, D2, D5 and HE1 of the
Placemaking Plan and policy CP6 of the Core Strategy.

Residential Amenity:

Policy D6 sets out to ensure developments provide an appropriate level of amenity space
for new and future occupiers relative to their use and that significant harm is avoided to
private amenity in terms of privacy, light and outlook/overlooking.

The proposed two storey extension, while close to the boundary of the confined curtilage,
is a long distance away from neighbouring dwellings and there will be no opposing
windows that may be overlooked. The proposal will not result in a loss of privacy to
neighbouring gardens or windows.

The bulk and scale of the dwelling relative to the natural ground levels to the south are
such that significant overbearing and loss of light will not occur to neighbouring gardens,
whilst distances to neighbouring dwellings ensure that no harmful impacts to neighbouring
windows will occur.

The proposal is in accordance with policy D6 of the Placemaking Plan.

Highways Safety and Parking:

Policy ST7 states that development will only be permitted provided, amongst other things,
the development avoids an increase in on-street parking in the vicinity of the site which
would detract from highway safety and/or residential amenity.

The proposed development will not affect the existing parking provision or vehicular
access, which provides 2 parking spaces and turning onto Church Lane. This is
considered adequate for the resulting 2 bedroom dwelling. The proposal is therefore in
accordance with policy ST7 of the Placemaking Plan.

CONCLUSION:

Page 102



The proposed development represents a disproportionate addition to the original building
is considered to harm the openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt. The proposal
therefore constitutes harmful development in the Green Belt and very special
circumstances have not been presented that outweigh the harm to the Green Belt. The
proposal is therefore contrary to national and local Green Belt policy and it is
recommended that the application is refused.

The proposed development will also harm the historic and rural character of the host
building and the surrounding conservation area and is contrary to policies on design and
impact on the conservation area.

RECOMMENDATION
REFUSE

REASON(S) FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed extension will increase the volume of the dwelling by over a third of the
original dwelling and would result in a disproportionate addition to the original building.
The proposal therefore represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt in
principle, and very special circumstances have not been presented that outweigh the harm
to the Green Belt. The proposed development is considered to harm the openness and
visual amenities of the Green Belt. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies GB1 and
GB3 of the Placemaking Plan, Policy CP8 of the Core Strategy and Section 13 of the
NPPF.

2 The proposed development will harm the historic and rural character of the host building
and the surrounding conservation area and is contrary to policies D1, D2, D5 and HE1 of
the Placemaking Plan and policy CP6 of the Core Strategy.

PLANS LIST:
This decision relates to the following plans:

Plans and Elevations as Existing - S5794/001A, Plans and Elevations as Proposed -
S5794/100D, both received 04/05/2018; Design and Access Statement (May 2018),
received 06/06/2018; Green Belt Calculations Email, received 07/06/2018.

Community Infrastructure Levy

You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. Whilst the above application
has been refused by the Local Planning Authority please note that CIL applies to all
relevant planning permissions granted on or after this date. Thus any successful appeal
against this decision may become subject to CIL. Full details are available on the
Council's website www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with
the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Framework.

Page 103



Page 104



Agenda Item 10

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: Development Control Committee

AGENDA
MEETING 29" August 2018 ITEM

NUMBER
DATE:

RESPONSIBLE Mark Reynolds, Group Manager, Development
OFFICER: Management (Telephone: 01225 477079)

TITLE: NEW PLANNING APPEALS, DECISIONS RECEIVED AND DATES OF
FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES

WARD: ALL

BACKGROUND PAPERS: None

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

APPEALS LODGED

App. Ref: 18/00443/FUL

Location: 155 Newbridge Hill Newbridge Bath BA1 3PX

Proposal: Change of use of land to garden (use class C3) and creation of 3no
car parking spaces.

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 27 March 2018

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 23 July 2018

App. Ref: 18/00930/ADCOU
Location: Barn Opposite Moor Lodge Moorledge Lane Chew Magna Bristol
Proposal: Prior approval for a proposed change of use of an agricultural

building to a dwelling house (class C3), and for associated operational development
(Resubmission).

Decision: REFUSE
Decision Date: 18 April 2018
Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 23 July 2018

App. Ref: 17/04891/FUL
Location: Flat 35 High Street Upper Weston Bath Bath And North East
Somerset

Page 105




Proposal: Change of use from 3 bed dwelling (Use class C3) into a 4 bed
House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Use Class 4).

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 11 December 2017

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 26 July 2018

App. Ref: 17/05330/FUL

Location: 15 Middle Street East Harptree Bristol Bath And North East
Somerset BS40 6BA

Proposal: Erection of a 1no bedroom attached house

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 9 January 2018

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 26 July 2018

App. Ref: 18/00952/FUL

Location: 108 Ivy Avenue Southdown Bath Bath And North East Somerset
BA2 1AN

Proposal: Retrospective Change of use of 108 Ivy Avenue, Bath BA2 1AN
from an HMO (C4) to an HMO (Sui Generis)

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 4 May 2018

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 27 July 2018

App. Ref: 18/00566/FUL

Location: 45 Brookfield Park Upper Weston Bath Bath And North East
Somerset BA1 4JH

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension following partial demolition
of existing outhouse and wall.

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 5 April 2018

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 31 July 2018

App. Ref: 18/01190/FUL
Location: Portbridge Mill Limeburn Hill Chew Magna Bristol Bath And North

Page 106



East Somerset

Proposal: Erection of a replacement office/gym building following removal of
existing outbuilding (Resubmission).

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 9 May 2018

Decision Level: = Chair Referral - Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 31 July 2018

Page 107



APPEALS DECIDED

Case Ref: 17/00264/UNDEV

Location: Greenleigh Farm Wells Road Chew Magna Bristol Bath And North
East Somerset BS40 8QR

Breach: Without planning permission the erection of a dwelling.

Notice Issue Date: 09 August 2017
Appeal Lodged: 02 January 2018
Appeal Decision: Appeal Allowed
Appeal Decided Date: 20 July 2018

App. Ref: 16/05890/FUL

Location: Charlcombe Grove Farm Access Road To Ravenswell House
Charlcombe Bath Bath And North East Somerset

Proposal: Erection of two storey extension to the house. Provision of upper

floor to South Barn. Construction of single storey glazed links. Associated landscaping
and ground works.

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 22 November 2017

Decision Level:  Chair Referral - Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 30 April 2018

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Appeal Decided Date: 20 July 2018

App. Ref: 16/05891/LBA

Location: Charlcombe Grove Farm Access Road To Ravenswell House
Charlcombe Bath Bath And North East Somerset

Proposal: Erection of two storey extension to the house. Provision of upper

floor to South Barn. Construction of single storey glazed links. Internal alterations.
Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 22 November 2017

Decision Level:  Chair Referral - Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 30 April 2018

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Appeal Decided Date: 20 July 2018

App. Ref: 17/03715/0UT
Location: 6 St Nicholas Road Whitchurch Bristol Bath And North East
Somerset BS14 0PJ

Page 108



Proposal: Outline application for the erection of 1 no. detached two
bedroomed dwelling with all matters reserved.

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 30 October 2017

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 25 April 2018

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Appeal Decided Date: 20 July 2018

App. Ref: 17/04512/RES

Location: Unregistered Farm Shop And Cafe Castle Farm Midford Road
Midford Bath

Proposal: Approval of all reserved matters with regard to outline application

15/03325/0UT for the erection of an agricultural workers dwelling.
Decision: APPROVE

Decision Date: 18 January 2018

Decision Level:  Planning Committee

Appeal Lodged: 18 April 2018

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Appeal Decided Date: 20 July 2018

App. Ref: 17/00847/RES
Location: Land At Rear Of 161 To 171 Englishcombe Lane Southdown Bath
Proposal: Approval of reserved matters in relation to outline application

16/01018/OUT (Erection of a maximum of 8no. dwellings at Land to Rear of 161-171
Englishcombe Lane) regarding scale, layout, appearance and landscaping of the site.
Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 3 July 2017

Decision Level:  Planning Committee

Appeal Lodged: 14 March 2018

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Appeal Decided Date: 23 July 2018

App. Ref: 17/03012/LBA

Location: The Clock House Bathford Hill Bathford Bath BA1 7SW
Proposal: Replacement front door (Retrospective)

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 19 October 2017

Decision Level:  Planning Committee

Appeal Lodged: 23 February 2018

Page 109



Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed
Appeal Decided Date: 23 July 2018

App. Ref: 17/04404/VAR

Location: Morrisons Supermarket London Road Walcot Bath BA1 6AE
Proposal: Variation of condition 6 of application 16/04379/VAR granted on
06/12/2016

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 31 October 2017

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 24 April 2018
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed
Appeal Decided Date: 24 July 2018

App. Ref: 16/05950/FUL

Location: Rising Sun 58 Lymore Avenue Twerton Bath Bath And North East
Somerset

Proposal: Erection of 7no. apartments following demolition of existing
converted public house.

Decision: REFUSE

Decision Date: 27 July 2017

Decision Level:  Delegated

Appeal Lodged: 18 April 2018
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed
Appeal Decided Date: 14 August 2018

FORTHCOMING HEARINGS AND ENQUIRIES

App Ref: 16/00205/UNAUTH

Location: Lime Kiln Farm Charlton Road Queen Charlton Bristol Bath And
North East Somerset BS31 2TW

Breach: Without planning permission the change of use of land from

agriculture (Sui Generis) to open storage (Use Class B8).
Appeal Lodged: 03 May 2018

Inquiry to be held on 11th September 2018 at the Guildhall, Bath.

Page 110



	Agenda
	8 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Update Report - 1 August 2018 - Appendix 1
	List of Speakers - Appendix 2
	Site Visit Decision List - Appendix 3
	Decision List - Appendix 4

	9 Main Plans List - Applications for Planning Permission Etc for Determination by the Committee
	10 New Planning Appeals Lodged, Decisions Received and Dates of Forthcoming Hearings/Inquiries

